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PART |

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statetsevithin the meaning of Section 21E of the SamsiExchange Act of 1934. Such
forward-looking statements include, among othdrssé statements including the words “expects, itgdtes,” “intends,” “believes,” “may,”
“will,” “should,” “continue” and similar languagerdhe negative of such terms or other comparabieit®logy. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in the forward-looking stagats are reasonable, HealthStream’s actual remalydiffer significantly from those
projected in the forward-looking statements. Factbat might cause or contribute to such differeninelude, but are not limited to, those
discussed in the section “Risk Factors” and elsegv/hrethis document. In addition, factors that we @ot currently aware of could harm our
future operating results. You should carefully esvithe risks described in other documents HeaklaBtrfiles from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. You are caedioot to place undue reliance on forward-lookitagesnents, which speak only as of the
date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Health&tneundertakes no obligation to publicly release r@wjsions to the forward-looking
statements or reflect events or circumstances tféedate of this document.

Item 1. Business
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. (“HealthStream” or the “Comparrovides Internet-based solutions and servicesdet the training, information and
education needs of the healthcare industry. Ounileg products and services are used by healttorgemizations to meet a broad range of
training needs, including training and assessnt@tused primarily on healthcare organizations (H@@) pharmaceutical and medical device
companies (PMD), HealthStream’s customers are ciseghof over 1,200 healthcare organizations (predately acute-care facilities)
throughout the United States and include relatigrsstvith some of the top medical device and phasutcal companies.

The Company'’s flagship product is the “HealthStrdagarning Center™,” (HLC) our proprietary, Interdetsed learning platform, which at
December 31, 2005 had approximately 1,272,000 actgd hospital-based subscribers. During 2005, xpeareded our product and service
offerings. We introduced an enhanced authoringyeberhich includes ADAM™ content and images and launched HealthStream CbHhec

a platform extension that allows us to provide caurseware offerings to healthcare organizatioasutilize other vendors’ learning
management platforms. In March 2005, we acquiretd Management & Research, Inc. (DMR) which expandsproduct offerings to
healthcare organizations to include quality anésfadtion surveys, data analyses of survey resaiis,other research-based measurement tools
focused on physicians, patients, and employeesicgsrprovided to and on behalf of pharmaceutindl medical device companies are foct

on the development and delivery of education itiités to reach hospital-based healthcare profeasi@nd sales representatives. Our products
and services include live and online educationtaziding activities as well as medical device thagnwithin hospitals through our
HospitalDirect® platform. Pharmaceutical and medical device congsapiovide commercial support for some of our cavitig education
activities.

Headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, the Compwasyincorporated in 1990 and began marketing tteshetbased solutions in March 19¢
Including satellite offices in Denver, Colorado df@nklin, Tennessee, HealthStream has 160 emmofeem an initial focus on technology-
based training, HealthStream has evolved to profuitieservice delivery of training, information and edtioa for healthcare organizations, i
with the recent acquisition of DMR, we are posigdrto enhance our ability to improve the qualitheélthcare by improving the quality of
healthcare education. The Company completed tiglipublic offering (IPO) in April of 2000.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

According to the deputy director of the Nationalaike Statistics Group at the Centers for Medicae ledicaid Services (CMS), spending in
the healthcare industry reached approximately 8illi&n in 2004, or 16.0 percent of the gross detieproduct. Hospital care expenditures
accounted for approximately 30 percent of the $ll#bn industry. Approximately 10.4 million prosionals are employed in the healthcare
segment of the domestic economy, with more thanrBllion employed in hospitals, our target markat the HealthStream Learning Center™,
HealthStreamDirect™, and HealthStream’s surveyrasdarch products.

The five million hospital-based healthcare profesals that work in the nation’s approximately 5,@@0te-care hospitals are each required by
federal mandates and accrediting bodies to compleiteing in a number of areas. This training inlea safety training mandated by both the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHAd the Joint Commission on Accreditation of lttezdre Organizations (JCAHO), as
well as training on patient information confidelitiarequired under the Health Insurance Portabditd Accountability Act (HIPAA).

1
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In hospitals, staffing issues and personnel sheg&igive also contributed to the need for enhancekforce development as well as additional
competency based training. The American Collegdeslthcare Executives reported in October 2004 Bt of hospital CEQ’s were
experiencing nursing shortages at their facilithscording to U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (elsy 2004) Monthly Labor Review, more
than one million new and replacement nurses wilhdéeded by 2012. For the first time, the U.S. Depant of Labor has identified Registered
Nursing as the top occupation in terms of job glothirough the year 2012. We believe that offeriaintng and education for hospi
personnel is increasingly being utilized as a m&@rand recruitment incentive.

Many healthcare professionals use continuing etutéd keep abreast of the latest developmentsreget licensing, certification, and
credentialing requirements. Continuing educatiaquirements include continuing education for nureesergency medical services personnel,
first responder personnel, radiologic personnel@mgicians. Pharmaceutical and medical device emieg must also provide their medical
industry sales representatives with training maedi&r the healthcare industry and training for rpaducts. They also provide support for
education and training for those audiences thatheie products in healthcare organizations.

Finally, the hospital industry continues to operatteler intense pressure to reduce costs as a oésatluctions in government reimbursement
rates and increased focus on cost containmentstensiwith participation of patients in managecdeqganograms. In addition, hospitals, as well
as pharmaceutical and medical device companiesinc@to experience rising operating costs, coupligd increased pressure to measure and
report on the outcomes of the dollars spent onitrgi Our products and services are designed ta thege needs by reducing healthcare
organizations’ costs of training while improvingtaing outcomes, enhancing reporting capabiliies, supporting customers’ business
objectives.

HEALTHSTREAM’'S SOLUTIONS
Services to healthcare organizations

HealthStream'’s solutions help healthcare orgamimatmeet their ongoing training, education, infaforg and compliance needs. We bring
training and education content together with adstiative and management tools through our Intebased platform, the HealthStream
Learning Center™ (HLC) and HealthStream Expfesbhis combination supports healthcare administsato configuring training to meet the
precise needs of different groups of employees,ifyiod training materials, and documenting thatrtiag has been completed. At

December 31, 2005, 1,272,000 healthcare profedsibad contracted subscriptions for our serviceisirigy for the HLC is subscription based,
with fees based on the number of subscribers, eaan® provided and other factors. We offer traipningplementation and account
management services to facilitate integration @f thchnology product into our customer’s operagngironments. Fees for training are based
on the time and efforts of the personnel involved.

Our online courseware is hosted in a central damgee that allows subscribers Internet access tG birvices, thereby eliminating the need for
onsite local implementations of installed learningnagement products. As a result, a significantberrof our customers that historically used
our installed learning management products havesitianed to our Internet-based platform. Our itksthlearning management software
contracts historically consisted of an upfronttise fee, additional courseware sales, and ongoaigtemance and support. Although we no
longer actively sell our installed learning managebproducts, we continue to provide these custsmegoing maintenance and support,
product updates, and are developing technologydweige them with additional courseware access déped.

On March 28, 2005 we acquired DMR, which supplement product and service offerings to include iqualnd satisfaction surveys, data
analyses of survey results and other research-masadurement tools. This acquisition expands cattymt offerings to support our healthcare
organization customers in their efforts to becomaders more effective organizations by training aedeloping their staff. The DMR product
team provides services to healthcare organizatirearily focused on the delivery of physiciantipat, and employee satisfaction survey’s.
As a result of this acquisition we maintain anadfin Franklin, Tennessee.

Along with the Internet-based HLC, we also offealiecare organizations full-service capabilitie€tmvert existing course material, self-
author new materials, and electively share thedenmés with other HealthStream customers throughuaseware exchange. We also offer an
industry leading image library, owned by A.D.A.Nh¢., as an additional subscription to this prod&eicing for these products is subscription
based, with fees based on the number of subscrinera separate fee for development licenses.

We also offer our customers tools to assess competend manage performance. Competency assessraergquirement of hospitals and
healthcare organizations for maintaining accreiditatbased on JCAHO requirements to evaluate, deatirand report performance
competencies. Our tools provide an effective medimetermining which competencies are associatédl @dch position and evaluating and
documenting competency assessments. This tod sgended to facilitate a custom training prog@ourses available through the HLC 1
uniquely responds to the needs identified for eaoployee.
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Our strategy is to continue to grow our customesebaf approximately 1,272,000 contracted subsaibsing the Internet-based HLC, as well
as providing our customers with industry leadingrseware offerings that align with healthcare dyatiitiatives. We will continue to
transition our installed learning management produstomers to our Internet-based HLC platform.Mé® believe that the acquisition of
DMR’s survey business provides us a product oftetivat supports our healthcare organization custeimeheir efforts to train and develop
their staff. We believe our sales force and mackeiditions offer us the opportunity to continuggtow our hospital-based customer base.

Services to pharmaceutical and medical device compies

Our services to pharmaceutical companies and medwéce companies are focused on development, gesnent and distribution of
education activities for three audiences: proviolesed healthcare professionals, physicians ancbtih@anies’ own sales representatives. We
develop, manage and distribute live, online andtm@dlucation and training activities for providezsed healthcare professionals and physic
as well as online education and training activif@ssales representatives. Certain of the edutatitivities we develop and distribute provide
continuing education credit for learners completimgm. Live education and training activities irdguive single or multi-day workshops,
preceptorships and proctorships, and activitiesgareed in hospitals by sales representatives. ®elilucation and training activities include
courseware containing video, animations and sirariatand live web meetings. Print education anditrg activities include study guides. All
of these activities are supported by either phaeutical or medical device companies.

Pricing for all services are based on the scoghefctivity, and is attributed to several categ®of services including: activity design and
development, accreditation, marketing, faculty, timge maintenance and distribution, project managrgmand replication and fulfillment. Not
all categories of services apply to all activiti€ee most significant exceptions to this pricingegach are distribution and management fees
which are based on the number of facilities or siseached and fees for certain courseware for sgpessentatives, which is priced on a per
user basis. Fees for non-accredited activitiepaie by pharmaceutical and medical device compasexdinary service fees. Fees for
accredited activities are paid in the form of uimieted educational grants.

Our services for pharmaceutical and medical desicepanies are coordinated by our project manageamehtlinical education personnel. !
employ a team of project managers and clinical atioie managers and outsource most other servidb#rdoparty individuals and companies.
The most significant exceptions to our outsour@pgroach are the distribution and management ofitées, particularly online activities that
take advantage of our network. Project managersadal aspects of the development of activitiesl ananage third-party resources used on
their projects. Clinical education managers coratbdspects of the content of accredited actisitie

Our strategy includes expanding our revenues biduideveloping customer relationships and by kyieig our existing base of Internesec
HLC customers for deployment of pharmaceutical ewedlical device training and education through texdisting products as well as
development of new products. In addition, we sealrow our pharmaceutical and medical device bagsitg transitioning many of our serv
offerings to Internet-based products and reducingf@cus on project-based development services.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

We acquired DMR in March 2005. For additional imf@tion regarding this acquisition, please see [Qaiéthe Consolidated Financial
Statements and Item 7, “Management’s Discussionfaradlysis of Financial Condition and Results of @tiens” included elsewhere in this
report.

CUSTOMERS

We provide our training, information and educatsmtutions to customers across a broad range dfesntvithin the healthcare industry,
including healthcare organizations (including gowveent entities) and pharmaceutical and medicalcgesompanies. We derived
approximately 14% and 15% of net revenue from HI®&, during 2005 and 2004, respectively. Duringht2®05 and 2004, no other
customers represented more than 10% of our nehuevd he following is a partial list of customenatthave purchased or contracted for
products and services from HealthStream.

Healthcare Organizations Pharmaceutical and Medical Device Companies
HCA Inc. Guidant Corporatiol

Tenet Healthcare Corporatis Merck & Co, Inc.

Community Health Systems, Ir Zimmer, Inc.

Triad Hospitals, Inc
LifePoint Hospitals, Inc
Ardent Health Services, LL
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SALES, MARKETING, AND CUSTOMER SUPPORT

We market our products and services primarily tgtoaur direct sales force and our account relatipnsanagers. As of December 31, 2005,
our sales and relationship management personnsisted of approximately 38 employees based ataynocate headquarters in Nashville,
Tennessee and in our satellite offices locatedamidin, Tennessee and Denver, Colorado, as weraste home office sales locations. Our
geographically dispersed field sales organizatsodivided into teams focused on our hospital augieand our pharmaceutical and medical
device audience. In addition to sales professiomagsalso employ account relationship managerswri to develop and expand
relationships, including contract renewals, witl baspital customers, and clinical education marsag#o are responsible for services
associated with pharmaceutical and medical devistomers.

We conduct a variety of marketing programs to prienoaur products and services, including produdlogs, user groups and trade shows,
online promotion and demonstrations, telemarketgmpaigns, public relations, distribution of prodsieecific literature, direct mail and
advertising. Annually, we host a national usergugr in Nashville known as “The Summit.” We haveimmouse marketing team that is
responsible for these initiatives and for workinighwand supporting, our product managers and $ates. We also have an in-house research
team focused on ensuring that our sales profedsitiaae appropriate market and target information.

We believe our ability to establish and maintaingdgerm customer relationships, adoption of oudpots and services and recurring sales are
dependent on the strength of our customer sereerations and support team. Our customer sereErations and support team consists of
approximately 37 employees located in our corpdnatdquarters in Nashville as well as our FranRlannessee office. This team provides
customer support to end users through a toll-eésphone line as well as electronic mail. Our repngatives are trained to understand our
philosophy, our products and services, and ouripsales, marketing and support issues. This telsm maintains an ongoing dialog with our
customer base to ensure a complete understandigstifimer needs. These personnel also assist mgibirgy issues and training associated
with our products as well as to ensure anticipategwals and incremental sales are achieved. Thaimeng personnel on this team are
responsible for training, implementation and suppbHLC, HealthStream Expre8s our survey business, and installed learning mamagt
customers.

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Our services are designed to be secure, reliabteerpandable. Our software is a combination oppetary and commercially-available
software and operating systems. This combinaticsoéifvare supports acquisition and conversion oteat, hosting and management of that
content, publication of our Web sites, downloadsairseware, registration, tracking of users, amirting of information for both internal a
external use. We designed our services to allown eamponent to be independently scaled by addingmercially-available hardware and a
combination of commercially-available and propnigtsoftware components.

Our network infrastructure, Web sites, and serttegis deliver most of our services are hosted kgl tbarty providers. Our primary data center
and hosting facility is in Chicago, while a secatada center and hosting facility is located in Nalh (with a second vendor). We are not
currently serving customers out of the second hgdtcility, but we continue to work to configuttdg location as a disaster recovery facility.
Both providers maintain our equipment in a secargrenment, including multiple redundancies in poweurces and network connections.
Our providers’ hosting centers are connected tdrttegnet through multiple, redundant high-speéerfioptic circuits. Our survey results are
hosted on servers located at our Franklin, Teneesfice. Company personnel monitor all serversyoeks, and systems on a continuous
basis. Together with our providers, we employ saMewels of enterprise firewall systems to protaat databases, customer information, and
courseware library. Backups of customer data ar®peed on a daily basis. Data is secured at a tehogation on a weekly basis.

COMPETITION

The healthcare education industry is highly fragraenvaries significantly in delivery methodsd., written materials, live events, satellite
broadcasts, video, CD-ROM products and online petejuand is composed of a wide variety of entitiesipeting for customers. The sheer
volume of healthcare information available to $gtontinuing education needs, rapid advances idicaé developments, and the time
constraints that healthcare professionals face rtalk#icult to quickly and efficiently access tlentinuing education content most relevant to
an individual’s practice or profession. Historigalhealthcare professionals have received contineducation and training through offline
publications, such as medical journals and CD-RCdvig, by attending conferences and seminars. Iniaddother healthcare workers and
pharmaceutical and medical device manufacturetessnd internal regulatory personnel usually Hiutiieir education and training needs
through instructor-led programs from external vesdar internal training departments. While thesgrapches satisfy the ongoing education
and training requirements, they are typically goatid inconvenient. In addition, live courses dterolimited in the breadth of offerings and
not provide a method for tracking training compati The related results of these traditional meshbdth from a business and compliance
standpoint, are difficult to track and measure.




Table of Contents

In addition to the competing delivery methods dibstt above, we also have direct competitors. A remalb companies offer competitive
installed and Web based learning management praditihe healthcare industry. We also compete laite scale learning management
system providers such as SABA and SumTotal Systeatprovide their services to multiple industriesluding healthcare. We also compete
with large medical publishers that have operatinigsitthat offer learning management systems that§@n healthcare, including Thomson
Delmar Net Learning and Reed Elsevier MC Stratediethe survey business, we see competition froes$Ganey and Gallup. Finally, over
the past year we have also seen an increase amérg approach between consulting and technolotiffemnto address larger scale projects.

We believe our solutions, which include both pradwsmnd services that facilitate training for heedite professionals, a wide assortment of
courseware, a mechanism for measuring satisfaoti@ther results, and the ability to provide alt sarvices on a single platform over the
Internet, provide us with a competitive advantalye. believe that the principal competitive factdifeeting the marketing of information,
training and development services to the healthicahestry include:

. features of the HLC product, including reportinggmagement functionality, courseware assignmentalsitity, and the ability to trac
utilization and results

. scope and variety of Internet-based learningsmware available, including mandated content foH®SICAHO, patient safety, and
HIPAA requirements, competency-based content, disasehe ability of our customers to create ansi ltleeir own Web-enabled
courseware

. scope and quality of professional services offerseluding survey execution, implementation, tragnend the expertise and techni
knowledge of the custom¢ employees

. competitive pricing, which supports a return oneistiment when compared to other alternative delivegthods
. customer service and support; ¢
. effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts, amdpany reputatior

Collectively, we believe these capabilities provigewith the ability to improve the quality of héredare by improving the quality and
accessibility of healthcare training.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY
The Internet

The laws and regulations that govern our businkasge rapidly. The United States government angdlrernments of some states and
foreign countries have attempted to regulate dEs/on the Internet. The following are some ofékielving areas of law that are relevant to
our business:

. Privacy Law.Current and proposed federal, state and foreigragyiregulations and other laws restricting théeotion, use
confidentiality and disclosure of personal inforfaatcould limit our ability to collect informatioar use the information in our
databases or derived from other sources, to generaénues. It may be costly to implement secwrityther measures designed to
comply with any new legislatiot

. Encryption LawsMany copyright owner associations have lobbiedf¢lderal government for laws requiring copyrightealtemials
transmitted over the Internet to be digitally emqded in order to track rights and prevent unaugteatiuse of copyrighted materials. If
these laws are adopted, we may incur substantst$ ¢o comply with these requirements or changeviyewe do busines

. Content RegulatiorBoth foreign and domestic governments have adagedproposed laws governing the content of mat
transmitted over the Internet. These include laalating to obscenity, indecency, libel and defaoratWe could be liable if content
delivered by us violates these regulatic

. Information Security Accountability RegulaticAt least six bills are pending in Congress thatideaquire public companies to obt:
certification by an independent third party of teenpany’s computer information security. In additi€alifornia has enacted
legislation requiring disclosure of security braeshnvolving personal information, and legislatieas been proposed in at least fifteen
other states. If this legislation is enacted, weg imaur costs to comply with these security requieats. The preliminary nature of st
legislation and the lack of related guidance madtamation of related costs difficult. If the Compais required to make a public
announcement regarding a breach of security, iiddoave a negative impact on our busin

5
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. Sales and Use TaThrough December 31, 2005, we collected salespusther taxes on taxable transactions in all stetevhich we
have employees. While HealthStream expects thagtproach is appropriate, other states or forjeigsdictions may seek to impose
tax collection obligations on companies like ug #ragage in online commerce. If they do, thesegakitbns could limit the growth of
electronic commerce in general and limit our apiid profit from the sale of our services over thiernet.

Laws and regulations directly applicable to@nmerce and Internet communications are becomorg prevalent. Recent sessions of Con¢
enacted Internet laws regarding online copyrigfringement. Congress continues considering lawardBgg Internet taxation. The dynamic
nature of this regulatory environment increaseautieertainty regarding the marketplace impact ehsegulation. The enactment of any
additional laws or regulations may increase out obsonducting business or otherwise harm ourrmss, financial condition and operating
results.

Regulation of Education, Training and Other Servics for Healthcare Professionals

Allied Disciplines.Various allied health professionals are requireditain continuing education to maintain their tises. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be reftgracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursypar. These requirements vary by
state and depend on the classification of the eyeglo

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (O$HZSHA regulations require employers to provide frairto employees to minimize the
risk of injury from various potential workplace lzmds. Employers in the healthcare industry areireduo provide training with respect to
various topics, including blood borne pathogensosxpe control, laboratory safety and tuberculasfisdtion control. OSHA regulations requ
employers to keep records of their employees’ cetignl of training with respect to these workplaegdrds.

Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare @rigations (JCAHO)JJCAHO mandates that employers in the healthcangsingl provide
certain workplace safety and patient interactiaining to employees. JCAHO required training magude programs on infection control,
patient bill of rights, radiation safety and inaideeporting. Healthcare organizations are requiogarovide and document training on these
topics to receive JCAHO accreditation. In additid@AHO imposes continuing education requirementplyrsicians that relate to each
physician’s specific staff appointments.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability AetIPAA).HIPAA regulations require certain organizationglinling most healthcare
providers and health plans, to adopt safeguardsdety the use and disclosure of health-relatestintion. HIPAA regulations also require
organizations that maintain or transmit health infation electronically in connection with certaiartsactions to provide reasonable and
appropriate safeguards to protect the privacygiitieand confidentiality of individually identiflale healthcare information. These healthcare
organizations are required to establish, maintathgrovide training with regard to their policiesdgprocedures for protecting the integrity and
confidentiality of individually identifiable healttare information. Healthcare organizations areireduo document training on these topics to
support their compliance.

Continuing Education (CEptate nurse practice laws are usually the sourethiority for establishing the state board of mgswhich then
establishes the state’s CE requirements for priafieasnurses. Continuing education programs argigea through accredited providers
approved by the American Nurses Credentialing Cebéenmission on Accreditation and/or the state 8d@dmursing. CE requirements vary
widely from state to state. Twenty-nine states imegsome form of CE in order to renew a nurse'srige. In some states, the CE requirement
only applies to re-licensure of advance practicses, or additional CEs may be required of thisgaty of nurses. On average, 12 to 15 CEs
are required annually, with reporting generallyeobi-annual basis. Certifications may also reqo@metinuing education credits (e.g., CNOR —
certification of perioperative nursing).

Continuing Medical Education (CMES$tate licensing boards, professional organizatamsemployers require physicians to certify thayth
have accumulated a minimum number of continuingioa@ducation hours to maintain their licenseméally, each state’s medical practice
laws authorize the state’s board of medicine tatdisth and track CME requirements. Thirty-four statedical licensing boards currently have
CME requirements. The number of CME hours requing@ach state ranges up to 50 hours or more per @ézer sources of CME
requirements are state medical societies and peaspiecialty boards. The failure to obtain the igtguamount and type of CME could resul
non-renewal of the physicianlicense to practice medicine and/or membershépriredical or practice specialty society. The AcariMedica
Association’s, or AMA’s, Physician Recognition Avdaior PRA, is the most widely recognized certifectdr acknowledging physician
completion of a CME course. The AMA classifies ¢oning education activities as either category hicl includes formal CME activities, or
category 2, which includes most informal activiti8ponsors want to designate CME activities for AMRA category 1 because this has
become the benchmark for quality in formally orgaai educational activities. Most agencies natiopwificht require CME participation spec
AMA PRA category 1 credit. Only institutions andyanizations accredited to provide CME can desigaatactivity for AMA PRA category
The Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical izhtion, or ACCME, is responsible for the accraditaof medical schools, state medical
societies and other institutions and organizattbas provide CME activities for a national or reggb audience of physicians. Only institutions
and organizations are accredited. The ACCME arnd stadical societies do not accredit or approveviddal activities. State medical
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societies, operating under the aegis of the ACCaAtEredit institutions and organizations that preM@ME activities primarily for physicians
within the state or bordering states. We are aredied provider of CME by the ACCME.

Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Prosidad Systems (HCAHP The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (Ch&e
partnered with the Agency for Healthcare ReseanchQuality (AHRQ) to develop a standardized surivesgrument and data collection
methodology for measuring patients’ perspectivebaspital care. The intent of the survey is to pilcomparable data on the patients’
perspective to allow consumer-based comparisongelest hospitals, align incentives to drive hospitalsnprove their quality of care, and
increase the transparency of hospital reportingpital participation is voluntary, with the firstilplic reporting slated for late 2007. While we
have participated in the vendor training, we haveyet assessed the full scope of the impact HCAHIR$ have on our survey business.

Office of the Inspector General (OIG) of the Depannent of Health and Human Services (HHS)

The OIG issued Compliance Program Guidance forrRaeeutical Manufacturers in April 2003 and issuen@liance Program Guidance for
the Durable Medical Equipment, Prosthetics, Orttsptand Supply Industry in July 1999 (collectivehg Guidelines). This document includes
guidelines related to continuing educational atiésisupported by pharmaceutical and medical desocgpanies. The Guidelines could affect
the type and extent of future support for our aauitig education activities. The trade associatfonshe pharmaceutical and medical device
industries (PhRMA and AdvaMed, respectively) halg® @romulgated their own codes of ethics. The Camggdollows the rules and guidelir
provided by ACCME, ANCC, and other continuing ediaraaccrediting bodies to ensure that its contigiéducation programming is free
from commercial bias and consistent with the OlGd8lines.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration and the Fedeal Trade Commission

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actionsragulatory policies or those that the FDA or fi&C may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability wvjte existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the i€pGlate the form, content and dissemination leéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-to-consumer prescriptiltug and medical device advertising, preparedbfor, pharmaceutical, biotechnology or
medical device companies. The FTC regulates owectiunter drug advertising and, in some cases,aakdiévice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the Flpfraved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims ngtraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information thegmotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withseuvices is subject to the full array of the FDAI &TC requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementsisspehip links and any educational programs thedt ildependent editorial control that we
may present with our services could be subjectd8 Br FTC regulation. While the FDA and the FTCqaahe principal burden of complian
with advertising and promotional regulations on &deertiser, if the FDA or FTC finds that any regatl information presented with our
services violates FDA or FTC regulations, they rradge regulatory action against us or the advertissponsor of that information. In 1996,
the FDA announced it would develop a guidance desraxpressing a broad set of policies dealing thi¢hpromotion of pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and medical device products on tieriret. The FDA has yet to issue that guidance miect, and it is not clear when such
document may be released. The FDA guidance documayteflect new regulatory policies that more tiighegulate the format and conten
promotional information on the Internet.

Other Government Regulations

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (th&) 8&artered the Advisory Committee on Smaller RuBbbmpanies (the Committee) on
March 23, 2005. The charter directed the Committesssess the current regulatory system for smalielic companies, including the impact
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and make recomaatons for change. Currently, our compliance V@#ttion 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act has been deferred to calendar year 2007. DiMiagch 2006, the Committee released a draft akjpert to the SEC, which included a
recommendation to establish a system of scalediesuegulations for smaller public companiese Bommittee also made specific
recommendations with regard to the external aedjtiirement under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-GddeyThe compliance environment in
which we operate continues to evolve. The Compamicues to monitor the resolution of this issuengure that we appropriately allocate
resources to maintain compliance with all applieaielgulations.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements and procedures
with employees, consultants and other third partiesnse agreements with consultants, vendorsastmers, and by controlling access tc
software, documentation and other proprietary imfation. We own Federal trademark and service neglstrations for the marks
“HEALTHSTREAM”, “HOSPITAL DIRECT”, “OR PROTOCOL", ‘QUALITY CHECK”, and “RESULTS! On-demand survey aysis.”
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We obtain the courseware that we license to ouoousrs through a combination of license agreemeittspublishers or authors, assignments
and work-for-hire arrangements with third partesd development by employees. We require publishetbors and other third parties to
represent and warrant that their content doesmfighge on or misappropriate any thiparty intellectual property rights, that they hake right

to provide their content and have obtained albtipiarty consents necessary to do so. Our publishetisors and other third parties also agr¢
indemnify us against liability we might sustain doghe content they provide.

If a third party asserts a claim that we have ngfed their patents or other intellectual propesty,may be required to redesign our products or
enter into royalty or licensing agreements. In #iddj we license technologies from third partiesificorporation into our services. Royalty ¢
licensing agreements with these third parties n@ybe available on terms acceptable to us, iflafdditionally, the steps we have taken to
protect our intellectual property rights may notdgequate. Third parties may infringe or misappaterour proprietary rights. Competitors
may also independently develop technologies tretabstantially equivalent or superior to the tedbgies we employ in our services. If we
fail to protect our proprietary rights adequat@yr competitors could offer similar services, paity significantly harming our competitive
position and decreasing our revenues.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company files reports with the SEC, including@el reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports omi©0-Q and other reports from time to
time. The public may read and copy any materialdilwavith the SEC at the SEC’s Public Referenc@iRat 450 Fifth Street, NW,
Washington, DC 20549. The public may obtain infalioraon the operation of the Public Reference Rbgrnsalling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The Company is an electronic filer and th€ $faintains an Internet site at http://www.sec.t@t contains the reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information fisdelctronically. Our website address is www.healézsn.com. Please note that our website
address is provided as an inactive textual referemty. We make available free of charge throughveebsite, the annual report on FormHK-
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$orm 8-K, and all amendments to those reports as ae reasonably practicable after such
material is electronically filed with or furnishéol the SEC. The information provided on our websiteot part of this report, and is therefore
not incorporated by reference unless such infolondt otherwise specifically referenced elsewherthis report.

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2005, we employed 160 personss@cess will depend in large part upon our tgtiti attract and retain qualified
employees. We face competition in this regard faiher companies, but we believe that we maintasdgelations with our employees. We
are not subject to any collective bargaining ageesh

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a brief summary of the businesperience of each of the executive officers of tleenpany. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve aptbasure of the Board of Directors. The followiagle sets forth certain information regarc
the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position

Robert A. Frist, Jr 39 Chief Executive Officer, President and ChairmathefBoard of Director
Arthur E. Newmar 57 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offic@ompliance Office
Susan A. Brownit 41 Senior Vice President, Corporate Secre

Fred Perne 52 Senior Vice Presidel

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, texvead as our chief executive officer and chairmite board of directors since 1990 and
president since 2001. Mr. Frist serves on the bo&directors of HearingPlanet, Inc., an onlinerirgaaid distribution company. He graduated
with a Bachelor of Science in business with coneinns in finance, economics and marketing fromifyr University.

Arthur E. Newman has served as our chief finarmffider and senior vice president since Januaryd2®8r. Newman assumed compliance
officer responsibilities in October 2004. From Adr990 to August 1999, Mr. Newman served as exeewtice president overseeing finance,
human resources, information systems and custoaneice and fulfillment for Lippincott, Williams and/ilkins, formerly Waverly, Inc., a
publicly traded medical sciences publisher. In M98, Waverly was acquired by Wolters Kluwer andged with Wolters Kluwer’s existing
U.S. based medical publisher, Lippincott-Raven Bhbks. From August 1999 to January 2000, Mr. News®ved as the chief technology
officer for Wolters Kluwer’s scientific, technicahd medical companies consisting of five separnaits.uMr. Newman holds a Bachelor of
Science in chemistry from the University of Miamidaa Masters of Business Administration from Rugdéniversity.

Susan A. Brownie was promoted to Senior Vice Peegtith January 2005. Before her promotion, Ms. Briewserved as our vice president of
finance and corporate controller since joiningrudlovember 1999. Ms. Brownie assumed corporateetgrresponsibilities in October 2004.
From August 1986 until 1999, Ms. Brownie worked Ki#MG LLP, a public accounting and

8




Table of Contents

consulting firm, most recently as a senior manalgist.Brownie serves on the board of directors aff®Inc., a clothing retailer. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration from the Co#lerf William and Mary and is a certified public acatant.

Effective with the filing of our Annual Report orofm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005, ukrth Newman will become our
executive vice president focused on operationsSargén A. Brownie will become our chief financidiicér and senior vice president.

Fred Perner departed from the Company in March 28@egoined HealthStream in June 2000, and pridrisaeparture he served as senior
vice president with various responsibilities, irdihg most recently sales and marketing. From Jani@®99 until June 2000, Mr. Perner served
as president of Education Design, Inc., a compaqyised by HealthStream in July 2000. Mr. Perndd$ia Bachelor of Science in general
management and a Masters in Business Administré&tion Indiana University. Mr. Perner also holds@.Jrom the University of Denver
College of Law.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We believe that the risks and uncertainties desdrifelow and elsewhere in this document are tmeipal material risks facing the Company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weytn@come subject to additional risks that are motemtly known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be maligreedversely affected by any of the following ris&nd by any unknown risks. The trading
price of our common stock could decline due to aefthe following risks or any unknown risks.

Risks related to our business model.

We may be unable to effectively implement our grbwtrategy which could have an adverse effect om business and competitive position
in the industry.

Our business strategy includes increasing our mahare and presence through sales to new custotrarsitioning existing customers,
further penetration and additional sales to existinstomers and introductions of new products andces. Some of the risks that we may
encounter in implementing our growth strategy idelu

. expenses, delays and difficulties of identifyingl amtegrating new products or services into ous#xg organization
. inability to leverage our operational and finanag$tems sufficient to support our grow
. inability to generate sufficient revenue from nesaducts to offset investment costs; ¢
. inability to effectively identify, manage and exjplexisting and emerging market opportuniti
If any of these risks are realized, our businesgdcsuffer.
We may be unable to effectively identify, completéntegrate the operations of future acquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we are activelyigeing possible acquisitions that complement oragrtle our business. We may not be able to
identify, complete or integrate the operationsutfife acquisitions. In addition, if we finance aisifions by issuing equity securities, our
existing shareholders may be diluted which coufdcfthe market price of our stock. As a resuliyéf fail to properly evaluate and execute
acquisitions and investments, our business prospeay be seriously harmed. Some of the risks tleatay encounter in implementing our
acquisition strategy include:

. expenses, delays or difficulties of identifying antkgrating acquired companies into our organiug
. inability to retain personnel associated with astjigins;
. diversion of manageme’'s attention from daily operations; a
. inability to generate sufficient revenues from dsiions to offset acquisition cost
Certain revenue components are subject to signifitluctuations.

As revenues from our subscription business contiauecrease, a larger portion of our revenues bélpredictable; however, quarterly
performance may be more subject to fluctuations@ated with our project based products and sesyisdich generally relates to our
pharmaceutical and medical device customers asasdikbalthcare organization customers who useupueys and research services. The
pharmaceutical and medical device business is giyeaissociated with recurring customer relatiopshhowever services are generally
specific and relate to product launches or trairgngnts that may vary from year to year. The mageitof such contracts
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may vary widely. Our survey and research servicedygically contracted by healthcare organizatifmmsmulti-year terms, but the frequency
and timing of survey cycles can vary from quartegquarter.

Our sales cycle is lengthy and can vary widely.

The period from our initial contact with a potehttastomer and the first purchase of our solutigrthe customer typically ranges from three to
nine months, and in some cases has extended mubbrfurhe range in the sales cycle can be impdmtdectors including an increasing trend
towards more formal requests for proposals (RHRragess, and more competition within our spaceyedsas formal budget timelines which
impact timing of purchases by target customersa Assult of these factors, we have only limitedighio forecast the timing and type of initial
sales. This, in turn, makes it more difficult teedict quarterly financial performance.

We may not be able to maintain our competitive piasi against current and potential competitors, esjally those with significantly greater
financial, marketing, technical and other resource

Several of our competitors have longer operatistphies and significantly greater financial, tedahj marketing and other resources than we
do. We encounter direct competition from both laagd small e-learning companies focused on traiaimycontinuing education in the
healthcare industry. We also face competition ftarger survey and research companies. We believaawnetain a competitive advantage
against our competitors with the comprehensiveyasfgroducts and services we offer. If our comjpesi were to offer a complete e-learning
solution to the healthcare industry, our competifposition could be adversely affected. These coiepanay be able to respond more quickly
than we are to new or changing opportunities, teldgies, standards or customer requirements. Runtihast of our customer agreements are
for shorter terms ranging from one to three yeaith no obligation to renew. The short terms ofsth@greements allow customers to more
easily shift to one of our competitors.

Growth in courseware subscription revenues depeindpart, on our obtaining proper distribution righg from our content partners.

Most of our agreements with content providers arerfitial terms of two to three years. The conteattners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneaniyg if we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our content
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaevith us on acceptable terms, it could resuét reduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute and decreased revenues. Mastirogreements with our content partners are aseemclusive, and our competitors also
offer, or could offer, training and continuing edtion content that is similar to or the same as.ofipublishers and authors, including our
current content partners, offer information to ss@rour competitors on more favorable terms thase offered to us or increase our license
fees, our competitive position and our profit masgand prospects could be harmed. In additionfathee by our content partners to deliver
high-quality content and to revise their contentegsponse to user demand and evolving healthcaenads and trends could result in user
dissatisfaction and inhibit our ability to attraetd retain subscribers of our courseware offerings.

We may not be able to develop enhancements to sistiag products and services or achieve widespraadeptance of new features or keep
pace with technological developmen

Our revenue growth is expected to be generatedghreales to new customers as well as increaslag shadditional courseware
subscriptions and other products and servicesistigg customers. Our identification of additiof@htures, content, products and services may
not result in timely development of complementamyducts. In addition, the success of certain nevdpets and services may be dependent on
continued growth in our base of Internet-basedarnsts or adoption of new methodology by new custsnigecause healthcare training
continues to change and evolve, we may be unaldedorately predict and develop features, conteditoeher products to address the needs of
the healthcare industry. If new products, featubegontent are not accepted by new or existingpoosrs, we may not be able to recover the
cost of this development and our business will éerfed. Continued growth of our Internet-based eustgopulation is dependent on our
ability to continue to provide relevant productsl @ervices in a timely manner. The success of osinless will depend on our ability to
continue providing our products and services a$ ageénhancing our courseware, product and seofiegngs that address the needs of
healthcare organizations.

Within the healthcare industry, our customer chaniseare focused on two segments: healthcare orgatimes and pharmaceutical/ medical
device companies. We rely on spending within thege segments and our business may suffer if finealgressures cause our potential or
existing customers to cut back on our services.

There are several economic factors that have hatgerct on the nation’s approximately 5,000 acuate hospitals. Some of these factors
include labor costs, which as recently as 2002 ttatesd 40 percent of 2002 hospital revenues, atingrto the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid (CMS), with half of that allocated for ftag nurses. Also, the reduced Medicare paymetreiases that resulted from the Balanced
Budget Act of 1997 and the lower payments that rhospitals accepted from managed care companiég ilast several years have both had
an adverse financial effect on the hospital segmiérgse financial pressures, along with severabmajspital defaults and bankruptcies, have
resulted in limited access to capital for some hatgp As HealthStream'’s target market within tiealthcare industry, hospitals’ financial
pressures are salient in achieving our businegtibgs.
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Financial analysts generally believe that mediealice companies enjoy higher revenues and eargimygth, relative to their medical supply
company counterparts, although they're considererenolatile. The medical device industry is highbncentrated; the largest two percent of
the 6,000 U.S. medical device firms account forrlydaalf of the industry’s sales, according to @EIS. In addition, relatively short product

life cycles for medical devices make the manageraedtmarketing strategies particularly crucialiis segment. These economic factors
contribute to the volatility of this customer chahfor HealthStream.

The top ten pharmaceutical companies account faesfent of U.S. drug sales, with the top compamging a ten percent market share of the
U.S. pharmaceutical market in 2001, according taSCBuccessful research and development is theriesr dor long-term growth, yet this
may be held constant or reduced during profit cheise—like that experienced by some companies gsafeait expires on their blockbuster
drugs. Both branded and generic pharmaceutical aarap fiercely litigate intellectually property aras a result, may experience adverse
financial consequences. Over the past few yeaesnpdceutical companies experienced a significamease in public scrutiny with respect to
product development, testing and introductionseiriain specific treatment areas. Continued regiristor further extending the testing and
product launch cycle could have a negative impaatur sales to and revenues from pharmaceuticapaoias. As one of our two customer
channels, these characteristics of the pharmaeatici medical device segment could have an impattealthStream.

Our product and service offerings include third pgrtechnology, the loss of which could materiallatm our business. Errors in third party
software or our inability to license this software the future could increase our costs and decrea@sg revenues

We use some licensed third party technology commisria our products. Future licenses to this tetdgyomay not be available to us on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all. The tdsw inability to obtain or maintain any of thetsehnology licenses could result in delays in
the introduction of new products or could forcgaigliscontinue offering portions of our learningmagement solutions until equivalent
technology, if available, is identified, licensawlantegrated. The operation of our products wdnddmpaired if errors occur in the third party
software that we incorporate, and we may incurtamthl costs to repair or replace the defectivévearfe. It may be difficult for us to correct
any errors in third party software because theasoft is not within our control. Accordingly, ounvenue could decrease and our costs could
increase in the event of any errors in this techgyl Furthermore, we may become subject to legaind related to licensed technology based
on product liability, infringement of intellectupftoperty or other legal theories.

Financial Risks
A significant portion of our revenue is generatetbfn a relatively small number of customel

We provide our Internet-based training and edunairvices and our survey and research servidd€ £ Inc. (HCA) under separate
agreements. During 2005, we derived approximaté®s,lor $3.9 million, of our net revenues from HG3ur agreement with HCA for our
Internet-based training and education servicesaué@matically renewed under the terms of the exgstigreement, but may be terminated by
either party upon forty-five days notice to theeastparty. We are in discussions regarding a reviselti-year agreement with HCA. Our sun
and research services agreement with HCA expir@eember 2007. We also derive a significant portibour revenues from a relatively
small number of customers. A termination of oureggnents with HCA or several of our other significeustomers or a failure by HCA or
other significant customers to renew their contract favorable terms, or at all, would have a ni@tadverse effect on our business.

As the percentage of our business that is subjeatednewal continues to increase, those renewalséhavunore significant impact on ot
revenue and operating results.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, approximsiely percent of our net revenues were derivethfour Internet-based subscription
products. Our Internet-based HLC customers hawebfigation to renew their subscriptions for ourguwots or services after the expiration of
the initial subscription period and in fact, sonustomers have elected not to renew their subsonipth addition, our customers may renew
lower pricing or activity level. During the yeardsd December 31, 2005, we renewed 89% of the awmoun#dact value up for renewal and 9

of the subscribers which were up for renewal. Tinalper of accounts up for renewal will continuertorease during and after 2006. Because a
significant portion of our customer contracts ai gperating under their original agreements avé only renewed one time, we do not have
sufficient historical data to accurately predidifie customer renewal rates. Our customers’ reneat@s may decline or fluctuate as a result of
a number of factors, including their dissatisfactwith our service. If we are unable to renew assauttial portion of the contracts that are uy
renewal or maintain our pricing, our revenues cdddadversely affected, which would have a matadakrse affect on our results of
operations and financial position. In addition, tma¢ our live event activity is of a recurring asaimewhat predictable nature, however, we do
not have any long term contracts that obligatealwestomers beyond their current contract termstr@cts for our survey and research
services typically range from one to three yealemgth, and customers are not obligated to reheiv tontract with us after their contract
expires. If our customers do not renew their areamgnts for our service, or if their activity levelscline, our revenue may decline and our
business will suffer.
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Our future success also depends in part on outyetulsell additional features or enhanced offgsiof our services to our current customers.
This may require increasingly sophisticated andlgssles efforts that require targeting, contaithyor approval by our customer’s senior
management. If these efforts are not successfubusiness may suffer.

The timing of our revenue recognition from salestagdty is dependent upon achievement of certain mgeor performance milestones, and
our inability to accurately predict them will harrour operating results.

Our ability to record revenues is dependent upeerse factors including the transfer of customegesfic information such as unique
subscriber IDs, which are required for us to impetcustomers on our Internet-based learning phatféccordingly, if customers do not
provide us with the specified information in a tisnexanner, our ability to recognize revenues wdldelayed, which could adversely impact
our operating results. In addition, completion aedeptance by our customers of developed content@uwseware must be achieved, survey
responses must be received, and utilization ofseware is required in connection with subscriptigernet-based learning products and
commercial support arrangements for us to recogeizenues. As we noted above, while we have besressful in achieving growth in our
subscription based revenues, our project basediuegehave and may continue to be subject to sigmififluctuations.

Because we recognize revenue from subscriptionsdor products and services over the term of the stiiption period, downturns o
upturns in sales may not be immediately reflectacour operating results.

We recognize a large portion of our revenue frostamers monthly over the terms of their subscripigreements, which are typically one to
three years, although terms can range from lessdha to up to five years. As a result, much ofrthenue we report in each quarter is related
to subscription agreements entered into duringipusvquarters. Consequently, a decline in new mewed subscriptions in any one quarter
will not necessarily be fully reflected in the rene in that quarter and will negatively affect oewenue in future quarters. In addition, we may
be unable to adjust our cost structure to refleesé¢ reduced revenues. Accordingly, the effecigmiificant downturns in sales and market
acceptance of our products and services may nfutlligereflected in our results of operations uffititure periods. Additionally, our subscription
model also makes it difficult for us to rapidly lease our revenue through additional sales in angg, as revenue from new customers must
be recognized over the applicable subscription term

We may not be able to meet our strategic busindgeaives unless we obtain additional financing, ish may not be available to us on
favorable terms or at all

Our current cash reserves and results of operatignexpected to be sufficient to meet our cashireapents through at least 2006. However,
we may need to raise additional funds in order to:

. develop new, or enhance existing, services or s

. respond to competitive pressur

. finance working capital requiremen

. sustain content and development relationship

. acquire complementary businesses, technology, sbatgroducts

At December 31, 2005, we had approximately $121Ramiin cash, cash equivalents, restricted caslestments in marketable securities and
related interest receivable. We expect to incuroup3.5 million of capital expenditures and contemtchases during 2006 to support our
business. We are actively reviewing possible bssimequisitions that would complement our prodantsservices. We may not have adeq
cash and investments to consummate one or moréséns. We cannot assure you that additionalrfaiag will be available on terms
favorable to us, or at all. If adequate funds areavailable or are not available on acceptabl@seour ability to fund expansion, take
advantage of available opportunities, develop tva@ce services or products or otherwise respondrtgpetitive pressures would be
significantly limited. If we raise additional fundly issuing equity or convertible debt securittbg, percentage ownership of our shareholders
may be reduced.

Our relatively short operating history may prevems from forecasting our results of operations aceuely.

As a result of our relatively short operating higtand lack of sustained success in executing oawilp strategy, we do not have historical
financial data for a significant number of periag®n which to forecast quarterly revenues and testdiloperations. We believe that period-to-
period comparisons of our operating results arenpoessarily meaningful and should not be reliezhugs indicators of future performance. In
addition, our operating results may vary substépti@his variability may be the result of differegs in levels of sales activity, introductions of
new products and services, and the related revemoagnition for our various products and servitesine or more future quarters, our results
of operations may fall below recent operating teeadthe expectations of securities analysts avneksiors, and the trading price of our comr
stock may decline.
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We have significant goodwill and identifiable intgible assets recorded on our balance sheet that iImagubject to impairment losses that
would reduce our reported assets and earnings.

As of December 31, 2005, our balance sheet inclgdedwill of $10.3 million and identifiable intarige assets of $3.3 million. Economic,
legal, regulatory, competitive, contractual, anideotfactors may affect the carrying value of goddarid identifiable intangible assets in the
future. If any of these factors impair the valudhese assets, accounting rules require us to edtiear carrying value and recognize an
impairment charge, which would reduce our repoasskts and earnings in the period an impairmeet&gnized.

Our stock price is likely to be volatile.

The market price of our common stock is likely touwmlatile and could be subject to significant fuations in response to factors such as the
following, some of which are beyond our controlagerly variations in our operating results; op@atesults that vary from the expectations
of securities analysts and investors; changespeaations as to our future financial performarmtenges in market valuations of other online
service companies; future sales of our common st&iokk market price and volume fluctuations; gahpolitical and economic conditions,
such as a recession or war or terrorist attacksterest rate or currency rate fluctuations; areeotisk factors described in this Form 10-K.
Moreover, our stock is thinly traded, and we havelatively small public float. These factors malvarsely affect the market price of our
common stock. In addition, the market prices focks of many Internet related and technology corgsamave historically experienced
significant price fluctuations that in some cagggear to bear no relationship to the operatinggperénce of these companies.

Risks Related to Sales, Marketing and Competition
We continue to refine our pricing and our producend services and cannot predict whether the ongoalgnges will be accepted.

Over the past few years we have implemented seekaziges and continue to make such changes irrigimgoand our product and service
offerings to increase revenue and to meet the n&fenlsr customers. We cannot predict whether oarect pricing and products and services,
or any ongoing refinements we make will be accepiedur existing customer base or by prospectiwtarners. If our customers and potential
customers decide not to accept our current oréupricing or product and service offerings, it @bblive a material adverse effect on our
business.

Risks Related to Operations

We may be unable to adequately develop our systpnogesses and support in a manner that will enabkto meet the demand for our
services

We have provided our online products and serviseesl 999 and continue to develop our ability tovite our courseware and learning
management systems on both a subscription andatttimsal basis over the Internet. Our future sused depend on our ability to effectively
develop the infrastructure, including additionatdware and software, and implement the servicetjding customer support, necessary to
meet the demand for our services. Our inabilityrfiime to time to successfully develop the necgssgstems and implement the necessary
services on a timely basis has resulted in ouoousts experiencing some delays or interruptiorikéir service. Such delays or interruptions
may cause customers to become dissatisfied witls@wice and move to competing providers of tradél and online training and education
services. If this happens, our revenues could keradly affected, which would have a material ageeaffect on our financial condition.

Our business operations could be significantly dipted if we lose members of, or fail to integratejr management team.

Our future performance is substantially dependarthe continued services of our management teanoandbility to retain and motivate
them. In March 2006, our senior vice presidentatés and marketing left the Company. The loss @&#rvices of any of our officers or senior
managers could harm our business, as we may radtlbedo find suitable replacements. We do not leamployment agreements with any of
our key personnel, other than our chief executifieer, and we do not maintain any “key personé lihsurance policies.
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We may not be able to hire and retain a sufficienimber of qualified employees and, as a result,mway not be able to grow as we expec
maintain the quality of our services.

Our future success will depend on our ability toeat, train, retain and motivate other highly Edltechnical, managerial, marketing and
customer support personnel. Competition for thessgnnel is intense, especially for developers, d&digners and sales personnel, and we
may be unable to successfully attract sufficieqthalified personnel. We have experienced difficirityhe past hiring qualified personnel in a
timely manner for these positions. The pool of digal technical personnel, in particular, is lindten Nashville, Tennessee, which is where our
headquarters are located. We will need to maintersize of our staff to support our anticipateavgh, without compromising the quality of
our offerings or customer service. Our inabilitydoate, hire, integrate and retain qualified pers in sufficient numbers may reduce the
quality of our services.

We must continue to upgrade our technology infrastture, both hardware and software, to effectiveheet demand for our services.

We must continue to add hardware and enhance seftwaccommodate the increased courseware inlwany} and increased use of our
platform. In order to make timely decisions aboartdware and software enhancements, we must beécabbeurately forecast the growth in
demand for our services. This growth in demandftorservices is difficult to forecast and the ptiraudience for our services is large. If we
are unable to increase the data storage and pogesgpacity of our systems at least as fast agrilvth in demand, our systems may become
unstable and our customers may encounter delagismptions in their service. Unscheduled downtooeld harm our business and also could
discourage current and potential customers ancceefiiure revenues.

Our network infrastructure and computer systems asodftware may fail.

An unexpected event like a telecommunications fajlire, flood, earthquake, or other catastropbss at our Internet service providers’
facilities or at our on-site data facility coulduss the loss of critical data and prevent us fréferiog our products and services. Our business
interruption insurance may not adequately compensafor losses that may occur. In addition, we oal third parties to securely store our
archived data, house our Web server and netwotkmgsand connect us to the Internet. While ourisemroviders have planned for certain
contingencies, the failure by any of these thirttipa to provide these services satisfactorily andinability to find suitable replacements
would impair our ability to access archives andrafeeour systems and software.

We may lose users and lose revenues if our secumigasures fail.

If the security measures that we use to protecqma information are ineffective, we may lose ss#rour services, which could reduce our
revenues. We rely on security and authenticatiohrtelogy licensed from third parties. With thisheology, we perform real-time credit card
authorization and verification. We cannot preditiether these security measures could be circumydryt@ew technological developments
addition, our software, databases and servers maylberable to computer viruses, physical or ebeit breakins and similar disruptions. V
may need to spend significant resources to preigainst security breaches or to alleviate probleaused by any breaches. We cannot assure
that we can prevent all security breaches.

Risks Related to Government Regulation, Content anthtellectual Property
Government regulation may require us to change thiey we do business.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkasge rapidly. The United States government anddlrernments of states and foreign
countries have attempted to regulate activitietherinternet. Evolving areas of law that are refeva our business include privacy law,
proposed encryption laws, content regulation atessand use tax laws and regulations. Becausesofahidly evolving and uncertain
regulatory environment, we cannot predict how tHage and regulations might affect our businesaddition, these uncertainties make it
difficult to ensure compliance with the laws andutations governing the Internet. These laws agdlegions could harm us by subjecting u
liability or forcing us to change how we do busikeSee “Business — Government Regulation of thermet and the Healthcare Industfgt a
more complete discussion of these laws and regukti

Any reduction or change in the regulation of contiting education and training in the healthcare indtry may adversely affect our busine

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtiaéting and continuing education for healthca&fgssionals and other healthcare workers
resulting from regulations of state and Federahaigs, state licensing boards and professionaihizgtions. Any change in these regulations
that reduce the requirements for continuing edanaind training for the healthcare industry cowddhin our business.
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In addition, our business with pharmaceutical ardlical device manufacturers is predicated on oilityatp maintain accreditation status with
organizations such as the ACCME, ANCC, American@iifor Pharmaceutical Education (ACPE) and othére failure to maintain status
as an accredited provider could result in a detmaleeffect on our business.

New regulations may reduce our business activityhapharmaceutical and medical device custome

In April 2003, the OIG of the Department of Headifd Human Services issued “OlG Compliance Prograidahce for Pharmaceutical
Manufacturers.” In July 1999, the OIG issued Comnptie Program Guidance for the Durable Medical Bgeimt, Prosthetics, Orthotics and
Supply Industry. These guidelines collectively itfgrthree areas of risks for pharmaceutical andliced device companies and recommends
certain best practices to be included in a compégsian designed to avoid the risk of federal ihealte program abuse. The guidance
highlighted a number of arrangements that havedthential to trigger fraud and abuse violations|uding educational grants. The Company
follows the rules and guidelines provided by theGME, ANCC and other continuing education accreditiodies to ensure that its continuing
education programming is free from commercial laiad consistent with the OIG guidance. The majaitthe Company’s accredited
continuing education programming is funded by etlapnal grants from our pharmaceutical and medieaick customers. There is no
assurance that our pharmaceutical and medical @evistomers will continue to provide educationaings consistent with past practices. To
the extent that our customers curtail or restractheir business practices, it could have a matdieerse impact on the Company’s revenues,
results of operations, and financial position.

We may be liable to third parties for content thiatavailable from our online library.

We may be liable to third parties for the contenbdiir online library if the text, graphics, softwaor other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual propeights, our content partners violate their coctwmal obligations to others by providing cont
to our library or the content does not conformdoegpted standards of care in the healthcare profed&/e attempt to minimize these types of
liabilities by requiring representations and watiesrelating to our content partneosinership of the rights to distribute as well as dlccurac
of their content. We also take necessary measoneview this content ourselves. Although our agrests with our content partners contain
provisions providing for indemnification by the ¢ent providers in the event of inaccurate contetcannot assure you that our content
partners will have the financial resources to ntieistobligation. Alleged liability could harm ouusiness by damaging our reputation, requ
us to incur legal costs in defense, exposing @swvards of damages and costs and diverting managsnagiention away from our business.
See “Business — Intellectual Property and OthepRetary Rights” for a more complete discussioithaf potential effects of this liability on
our business.

Protection of certain proprietary trademarks and ehain names may be difficult and costl

Despite protection of certain proprietary tradersaakd domain names, a thipasty could, without authorization, copy or othesevappropriat
our content or other information from our datab&3er agreements with employees, consultants aretothho participate in development
activities could be breached. We may not have amteqemedies for any breach, and our trade sauitsotherwise become known or
independently developed by competitors. In addjttha laws of some foreign countries do not protectproprietary rights to the same extent
as the laws of the United States, and effectiveygght, trademark and trade secret protection naybe available in those jurisdictions. We
currently hold several domain names. The legalistat intellectual property on the Internet is ettty subject to various uncertainties. The
current system for registering, allocating and ngamgdomain names has been the subject of litigatitd proposed regulatory reform.
Additionally, legislative proposals have been mhgéhe federal government that would afford broestgrtion to owners of databases of
information, such as stock quotes. This proteatibdatabases already exists in the European Uilioere have been substantial amounts of
litigation in the computer and online industriegaeding intellectual property assets. Third-pares/ claim infringement by us with respect to
current and future products, trademarks or othepnpetary rights, and we may counterclaim againshgarties in such actions. Any such
claims or counterclaims could be time-consuminguitan costly litigation, divert managemengttention, cause product release delays, re
us to redesign our products or require us to enterroyalty or licensing agreements, any of whichuild have a material adverse effect upon
our business, financial condition and operatingltesSuch royalty and licensing agreements maygatvailable on terms acceptable to us, if
at all.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual properand we may be liable for infringing the inteliéual property rights of others.

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized aiieinge upon or misappropriate our proprietaygtems, content, services or other
information. Our efforts to protect our intellectypaoperty through copyright, trademarks and ott@rtrols may not be adequate. In the future,
litigation may be necessary to enforce our intéllakproperty rights or to determine the validitydescope of the proprietary rights of others,
which could be time consuming and costly. Intellatroperty infringement claims could be made egfaiis as the number of our competitors
grows. These claims, even if not meritorious, cdadcexpensive and divert our attention from opegatiur company. In addition, if we beco
liable to third parties for infringing their intelttual property rights, we could be required to paybstantial damage award and develop
comparable non-infringing intellectual property distain a license or to cease providing the cordgeservices that contain the infringing
intellectual property. We may be unable to develop-infringing intellectual property or obtain adhnse on commercially reasonable terms, if
at all.
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item 2. Properties

Our principal office is located in Nashville, Terssee. Our lease for approximately 32,000 squatefehbis location expires in April 2010. T
lease provides for a five-year renewal option wétht at rates which are substantially similar toeut rates. Rent at this location is
approximately $23,000 per month.

We are leasing approximately 8,000 square feeffiwleospace in Denver, Colorado for our satellitice. The lease expires in March 2010 and
has monthly rent of approximately $9,000.

We are leasing approximately 8,000 square feeffimieospace in Franklin, Tennessee for our sagetlffice. The lease expires in August 2007,
and contains two one year renewal options. Rethigitocation is approximately $8,200 per monttotlyh February 2007, and approximately
$8,500 per month from March 2007 to August 2007.

We are leasing approximately 6,000 square feeffifeospace in Dallas, Texas. The lease expirdaimuary 2007 and has monthly rent of
approximately $8,000. We are currently subleadiig) affice space at the rate of approximately $8,08r month to a third party for the
remaining term of the lease.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

None.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Sktwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities.

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the high and low sales prices per shaceio€ommon stock as reported on the
NASDAQ National Market under the ticker symbol HST

Common Stock Price

2005 2004
High Low High Low
First Quarte! $ 3.7 $ 2.6C $ 3.0¢ $ 1.7
Second Quarte 4.0 2.6t 2.5¢ 1.8¢
Third Quartel 3.9¢ 2.9t 2.1C 1.61
Fourth Quarte 2.8¢ 1.91 3.1C 1.87

On March 3, 2006, there were 193 registered holaedsapproximately 2,386 beneficial holders of cammon stock. Because many of such
shares are held by brokers and other institutionisamalf of shareholders, we are unable to estithatéotal number of shareholders
represented by these record holders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagagh dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings to financedakpansion of our operations.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

There have been no sales of unregistered secusities December 31, 2004.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
There were no stock repurchases by the Compameifotirth quarter of 2005.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

On April 10, 2000 our Registration Statement omfr&-1 (File No. 333-88939) was declared effectiyehe Securities and Exchange
Commission. Pursuant to the Registration Statementegistered and sold 5,275,000 shares of constomk at a price of $9.00 per share.
managing underwriter was FleetBoston Robertsonh@teq Inc. The aggregate price of the amount affarel sold was $47,475,000. In
connection with the issuance and distribution efsbcurities registered, we paid $3,323,250 rekateshderwriting discounts and commissions
and approximately $2,000,000 of other expenses.

The net offering proceeds to the Company after diuly the total expenses noted above were apprasiynd42,200,000. From the effective
date of the Registration Statement through Dece®bg2005, we have used all of the net offeringpeals to fund general operating exper
acquisitions and other working capital needs.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected statements of operations data fahtke-year period ended December 31, 2005 andahede sheet data as of December 31,
2005 and 2004 are derived from our consolidateafiial statements that have been audited by Erné&iuding LLP, our independent registel
public accounting firm, and are included elsewtierihis report. You should read the following séetfinancial data in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the not#sose statements and “Management’s Discussion aadygis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” located elsewhere in thi®re

HealthStream acquired DMR on March 28, 2005. DMR&ults of operations are included within our cdidsted statement of operations
effective March 29, 2005. As a result of this asgign, the annual results presented below areowiparable. Revenues may be subject to
fluctuations as discussed further in “Managemebit&cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” located
elsewhere in this annual report. During 2002, wepted SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Intangible Assetghich eliminated the amortization
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assetsalecordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142regorded a transitional goodwill
impairment charge of $5.0 million, in our healtrearganizations (HCO) business unit, as a cum@affect of a change in accounting
principle as of January 1, 2002. As a result of Hicounting change, the annual results preseeted lare not comparable. The operating
results for any single year are not necessarilicative of the results to be expected in the future

Year Ended December 31
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(in thousands, except per share data)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenues, n¢ $27,35¢ $20,057 $18,19¢ $ 15,79( $ 13,50:
Operating costs and expens

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and

amortization) 9,74¢ 7,27 6,26¢ 5,97( 5,772
Product developmel 2,92¢ 2,531 3,24 4,67¢ 5,041
Sales, marketing, general and administrative e 10,41 9,43: 9,431 12,83¢ 13,01¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,67¢ 2,107 3,04¢ 4,398 9,93¢
Office consolidation charg — — — 164 401
Impairment of lon-lived asset: — — — 10t 712

Total operating costs and expen 25,76: 21,34¢ 21,99« 28,14¢ 34,88:

Income (loss) from operatiol 1,59¢ (1,29)) (3,799 (12,359 (21,379
Other income (expens 33¢ 243 387 717 1,80z

Net income (loss), before provision for income t&axi
and cumulative effect of a change in accounting

principle 1,93¢ (1,04¢) (3,419 (11,647 (19,57¢)
Provision for income taxe 21 — — —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prifec — — — (5,000

1,04¢ $ (3,412 (16,64) $(19,57¢)

“

Net income (loss $ 1,918

Net income (loss) per sha— basic and dilutec
before cumulative effect of a change in account

0
$ :
$ (0.05) $ (0.17) (0.57) $ (0.99

principle $ 0.0¢ $
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting prifec — — — (0.29) —
Net income (loss) per she— basic and dilute: $ 0.0¢ $ (0.09 $ (0.17 $ (0.89 $ (0.9¢
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding
— basic 21,05; 20,58t¢ 20,38 20,26 19,92;
Weighted average shares of common stock outstand
— diluted 21,94: 20,58¢ 20,38 20,26 19,92;

1
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At December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(in thousands)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivale $ 5,72¢ $ 2,257 $ 3,22( $ 4,07( $ 4,74]
Investments in marketable securities — short and lo

term 6,17¢ 14,02t 13,95¢ 15,15 21,41(
Working capital 10,027 15,67¢ 16,31¢ 14,91: 17,94¢
Total asset 35,21¢ 28,43¢ 28,39¢ 32,91 49,24’
Deferred revenu 4,50: 3,86¢ 3,05¢ 3,34¢ 3,27¢
Long-term debt ancapital leases, net of current porti 21€ 29 1 41 11¢
Shareholdel equity 25,80( 21,73( 22,55¢ 25,89¢ 42 54

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoalteld in conjunction with “Selected
Financial Data” and HealthStream’s Consolidatedifaial Statements and related notes thereto indladewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statements ithadlve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamtsialcresults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated i floeward-looking statements as a result of mantofa, including but not limited to, those
described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere mrtport.

The following discussion provides an overview of bistory together with a summary of our criticataunting policies and estimates. Our
critical accounting policies and estimates incloelenue recognition, product development costsrelatied capitalization, impairment of
goodwill, intangibles and other long-lived assetd the allowance for doubtful accounts.

OVERVIEW

HealthStream was incorporated in 1990 and begakatiag its Internet-based solutions in March 1988 Company focuses on being a
facilitator of solutions and training tools for &i@s in the healthcare industry. Revenues fromhiedthcare organizations business unit
(HCO) are derived from the following categoriesoyision of services through our Internet-based th&iteam Learning Center, courseware
subscriptions, survey and research services, atyasf complimentary online products, and maintexesand support of installed learning
management products. Revenues from the pharmaakartid medical device company business unit (PMBYarived from live event
development, online training and content developireard other educational and training services.

To date, we have incurred substantial costs toldpvaur technologies, create, license, update aaqdire our content, build brand awareness,
develop our infrastructure and expand our busiress,only recently achieved sufficient revenuegenerate a net profit or positive operating
cash flows. We have incurred operating losses¢h &acal quarter from 1994 through the third geadf 2004. We have generated net income
each quarter since the fourth quarter of 2004. Yeet our operating results will continue to impealuring 2006, but will be unfavorably
impacted by the adoption of SFAS 123R “Share-B&sanents” beginning January 1, 2006.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues from our Internet-based ilegproducts and courseware subscriptions to hesighworkers through healthcare
organizations based on a per person subscriptisis,baith fees ranging from less than $1 to moamtié per month. These fees are based on
the size of the facilities’ or organizations’ emyde user population and the service offerings thvthey subscribe. Contracts for our Internet-
based learning products generally range from leess $5,000 to approximately $400,000 per year basgtie number of users, products and
services included in the contract. Revenue is neieed ratably over the service period of the undegl contract.

Revenues from our survey and research servicedeseemined using the proportional performance nithad are earned over the estimated
survey cycle, which typically ranges from less tlbae month to up to four months. The survey cyzlgeinerally initiated based on the receipt
of the first survey response and runs through giomiof related survey reports to the customeroffier revenues are recognized as the relatec
services are performed or products are deliveréde@ustomer.

Revenues from content maintenance services areiagsbwith maintaining and updating customer owoetent. Fees are based on the time
and efforts involved, and revenue is recognizechugmpletion of performance milestones using tlopertional performance method.
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We offer training services for clients to facilgahtegration of our Internet-based products. Feesaining are based on the time and efforts of
the personnel involved. Basic online training isg@lly included in the initial contract, howevirgcremental training revenues are generally
recognized upon completion of training services.

Revenues from installed learning management predaret associated with ongoing maintenance anditatlsupport services, typically based
on a percentage of the original contract amountaaadecognized as revenue over the term of thvicegperiod, generally one year.

We have and expect to continue to transition custsrfrom our existing installed learning managenpeatiucts to our Internet-based learning
products. We expect that revenues resulting freeseahransition customers will increase when contpiréhe annual maintenance and
technical support services fees due to sales dfiadal services and online courseware.

We recognize revenue from live event developmentices using a proportional performance method dasecompletion of performance
milestones. Revenues from content maintenance evel@pbment services are recognized using a pegewfacompletion method based on
labor hours, which correspond to the completiopeformance milestones and deliverables. Salesoaiygts and services to pharmaceutical
and medical device companies can be subject tosabfctors as a result of drug and product intotidns, meeting and conference dates and
budget cycles for such companies.

Revenues associated with online training are rezegdrover the term of the subscription period cerahe historical usage period, if usage
typically differs from the subscription period. Alther service revenues are recognized as thedetarvices are performed or products are
delivered.

We expect to continue to generate revenues by riagkeur Internet-based products and services édtheare workers through healthcare
organizations and pharmaceutical and medical dexdogpanies. We expect that the portion of our reesrrelated to services provided via our
Internet-based learning products will increasehiscdute dollar amounts. Since revenues from owresuand research services are not Internet-
based, the percentage of total revenues from letdrased subscription products has declined cordparkistorical periods. Specifically, we
will seek to generate revenues from healthcare @rsrlay marketing to their employers or sponsorirgaoizations. The fees we charge for
courseware resulting from this marketing is tydicahid by either the employer or sponsoring orgation.

Product Development Costs

Product development costs primarily include ouelinal costs to maintain and internally developvgafe features and content for our Internet-
based learning and installed learning managemeidupts. Once technological feasibility is achiewsd,capitalize payments to third parties
associated with the cost of feature developmenbotent where the life expectancy is greater th@nyear and the anticipated cash flows from
such software features or content are expectexricieed the related cost of the features or conBaing 2005 and 2004, we capitalized
approximately $400,000 and $600,000, respectivelgted to development of content by third partsch amounts are included in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets undeagt®mn “prepaid development fees” and “other aSdmsed on remaining useful lives.
During 2005 and 2004, we capitalized approxima$&90,000 and $300,000, respectively, for develogroésoftware features. Such amounts
are included in the accompanying balance sheetsruhd caption “prepaid expenses and other cuassets” and “other assets” based on
remaining useful lives. We amortize content andveafe features over the expected life, which isegelty one to three years. Capitalized
content and software features are subject to agierimpairment review in accordance with our pglic

Product development costs also include our systeam, which manages our efforts associated witdymbdevelopment and maintenance,
database management, quality assurance and sedtnigyteam is responsible for new internal prodiestelopment, integration of external r
products, and continued enhancements and regusielisduled maintenance (called ServicePacks) tplatform.

We account for Web site development costs in aeeard with EITF Issue No. 00-2 “Accounting for WelbeDevelopment Costs” and SOP
98-1 “Accounting for the Costs of Computer SoftwBeveloped or Obtained for Internal Use,” which\pdes guidance on when to capitalize
versus expense costs incurred to develop intesebaftware or Web sites. We capitalize costs necuduring the development phase for such
projects when such costs are material. Maintenandeoperating costs are expensed as incurred.

In connection with product development, our sigmfit estimates involve the assessment of the dawelot period for new products, as wel
the expected useful life of costs associated wéth products, software features and content. Ongitatiaed, software feature and content
development costs are subject to the policies atichates described below regarding goodwill, inthleg and other long-lived assets.
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Goodwill, intangibles and other long-lived assets

We account for goodwill, intangibles and other ldivgd assets in accordance with Statement of Kiaaccounting Standards

(SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Intangible AssetsidaSFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairmentiisposal of Long-Lived AssetsWe
measure for impairment at the reporting unit lax@hg a discounted cash flow model to determineetfitenated fair value of the reporting
units. Our discounted cash flow model containsifigant assumptions and accounting estimates atlisabunt rates, future cash flows and
terminal values that could materially affect ouergting results or financial position if they weéoechange significantly in the future and could
result in an impairment. We perform our goodwilliairment test whenever events or changes in faasaumstances indicate that
impairment may exist and also during the fourthrtpreeach year.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate the allowance for doubtful accountegibioth a specific and non-specific identificatioathod. Management’s evaluation
includes reviewing past due accounts on a casexby lsasis, and determining whether an accountgheuleserved, based on the facts and
circumstances surrounding each potentially uncttiecaccount. An allowance is also maintaineddocounts not specifically identified that
may become uncollectible in the future. Uncolldetibccounts are written-off in the period managerbetieves it has exhausted every
opportunity to collect payment from the customeadBlebt expense is recorded when events or ciramees indicate an additional allowance
is necessary based on our specific identificatjgoreach.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Data Management & Research, lOn March 28, 2005, the Company acquired all ofstioek of Data Management & Research, Inc.
(DMR) for approximately $10.7 million, consisting $9.1 million in cash and 479,234 shares of ounemn stock. The Company also
incurred direct, incremental expenses associatddthe acquisition of approximately $0.4 millionf fde common stock portion, 319,489
shares were deposited in an escrow account toldddreeighteen months from the acquisition datdject to any claims for indemnification
pursuant to the stock purchase agreement. DMR gres\iealthcare organizations a wide range of guatitl satisfaction surveys, data anal'
of survey results, and other research-based mensuatdools focused on physicians, patients, andaaps. This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method of acaaginti

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Revenues and Expense Components
The following descriptions of the components oferewes and expenses apply to the comparison ofsedidperations.

RevenuesRevenues for our HCO business unit currently comsithe provision of services through our Interbased HealthStream Learning
Center (HLC), authoring tools, survey and reseamsfrices, a variety of courseware subscriptiond-Gatdcourseware) maintenance and sug
services for our installed learning managementycts] maintenance of content, and competency tBagenues for our PMD business unit
consist of live event development, online trainamgl content development, online sales trainingsesyrive educational activities for nurses
and technicians conducted within healthcare orgdioias, continuing education activities at assomiatmeetings, and HospitalDirett

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues consists primarily of salariesemgloyee benefits, employee
travel and lodging, materials, contract labor, mastosts, and other direct expenses associatédeienues as well as royalties paid by us to
content providers based on a percentage of reveReesonnel costs within cost of revenues are &sdowith individuals that facilitate
product delivery, provide services, handle custosugport calls or inquiries, manage our web sitenfent and survey services, coordinate
content maintenance services, and provide traioiimplementation services.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses consist primarilalafries and employee benefits, content acquisdasts before
technological feasibility is achieved, costs assd with the development of content and expenstassociated with maintaining, developing
and operating our training delivery and administraplatforms. In addition, product developmentexges are associated with the develop

of new software features and new products. Pers@osées within product development include our syst team, product managers, and other
personnel associated with content and product dpuant.

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses consist primarilalafies, commissions and employee benefits, empltypeel
and lodging, advertising, trade shows, promotiansi related marketing costs. Annually, we hosttinal users’ group in Nashville known as
“The Summit.” Personnel costs within sales and mtimg include our sales and marketing team asasgetlur account management group. Our
account management personnel are working to emsurgroducts and services are fully utilized by oustomers, as well as supporting the
contract renewal process for existing hospital @austrs.
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Other General and Administrative Expend@ther general and administrative expenses consimayly of salaries and employee benefits,
employee travel and lodging, facility costs, offexpenses, fees for professional services, and ofiezational expenses. Personnel costs v
general and administrative expenses include indalglassociated with normal corporate functionsdanting, legal, human resources,
administrative, internal information systems, ardaeitive management) as well as accreditation psideals.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization consist of fixed aslepreciation, amortization of intangibles consédeto have
definite lives, and amortization of content, licerigses, software features, and royalties paid toect providers that are of a fixed nature.

Other Income/Expens&he primary component of other income is interasbime related to interest earned on cash, cashadenis and
investments in marketable securities. The primammonent of other expense is interest expenseecetatcapital leases.

Executive Summary

The year ended December 31, 2005 included sevigrafisant achievements for our Company, includirgenues of approximately

$27.4 million, a 36% increase over the prior yeat aet income of approximately $1.9 million, or@@per share. We acquired DMR in
March 2005 which added strength to our productrisffgto healthcare organizations, and contribuigat@ximately $4.5 million, or 16%, of
our 2005 revenues. Our flagship product, the Ietebbased HealthStream Learning Center continued to,grohieving revenue growth of 1¢
over the prior year. After paying $9.5 million aish for DMR including direct, incremental costsomssted with the acquisition, we ended
2005 with approximately $12.2 million in cash, istraents in marketable securities and related isteeeeivable. Full year 2005 results
reflected our first full year of net income, totaji$1.9 million, or $0.09 per share (basic andtedi

2005 Compared to 2004

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $7.3 million,604%, to $27.4 million for 2005 from $20.1 millidor 2004. Revenues for 2005
consisted of $21.2 million for HCO and $6.2 millitar PMD. In 2004, revenues consisted of $14.0iarilfor HCO and $6.1 million for PMD.

Revenues for HCO increased approximately $7.2 anillor 51.2%, during 2005 primarily related to ynand research revenues of

$4.5 million resulting from the acquisition of DMBrowth in our Internet-based HLC subscriber bdsg2d® million, $900,000 from growth in
add-on courseware subscription revenues, and $1G80m content maintenance services. These HCéntgrincreases were partially offset
by declines in revenues from maintenance and stifg®s associated with our installed learning manent products of $368,000. Our
Internet-based HLC subscriber base increased ajppatedy 13% during 2005, from approximately 1,040 6ully implemented subscribers at
the end of 2004 to approximately 1,173,000 fullpiemented subscribers at the end of 2005. We expeehues from our Internbased HLC
survey and research services, and add-on courséavarerease in 2006. We expect continued declimesvenues from our installed learning
management products during 2006.

Revenues for PMD increased approximately $143,000,3%, during 2005, although the mix of revenctesnged. Revenues from live events
and online training courseware increased $272,0006891,000, respectively. These revenue incressespartially offset by declines from
our project-based content development service$27 $00. Revenues from our HospitalDiréptoduct increased modestly during 2005. We
expect that revenues from HospitalDir&cbnline training courseware, and live events imitrease during 2006. We expect revenues from
project-based content development services willaiarnomparable or decline slightly during 2006 @&swwork to transition our sales efforts to
subscription based products and other online dglineethodologies.

On a pro forma basis, taking into considerationetffiect of the DMR acquisition as if the acquisitibad occurred on January 1, 2004, pro
forma revenues for 2005 would have been $28.8aniliompared to $25.2 million for 2004.

During 2005, 59.8% of revenues were derived fromloternet-based learning products, 16.4% from eyiand research services, 14.9% from
live event development services, 6.5% from contiewelopment and maintenance services, and 2.4%dtwrmstalled learning management
products. During 2004, 65.2% of revenues were ddrfvtom our Internebased learning products, 18.9% from live event igrment service:
10.7% from content development and maintenancécssrvand 5.2% from our installed learning managermenducts.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaiitin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $2.5anillor 33.9%, to $9.8 million

for 2005 from $7.3 million for 2004. This incredsehe result of the acquisition of DMR’s surveydaesearch service business, including
personnel and other direct expenses, increasect dixpenses associated with live events, increasedties paid by us to content partners, and
increased hosting expenses. These expense increasepartially offset by lower direct expensesaiged with the decline in revenues from
content development services.
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Cost of revenues for HCO increased approximately $#llion, or 93.0%, to $5.5 million for 2005 frof2.8 million for 2004. This increase
consisted of incremental personnel and direct astsciated with DMR’s survey and research seryinegeases in personnel and contract
labor associated with content maintenance servaescrease in the royalties paid by us to corpgantners, as well as increased hosting
expenses.

Cost of revenues for PMD decreased approximatedp 00, or 5.2%, to $3.7 million for 2005 from $3m@lion for 2004. This decrease
resulted from lower direct expenses associated tvéldecline in revenues from content developmemntices and lower personnel expenses,
but was partially offset by royalties paid by usctmtent partners.

Cost of revenues for the unallocated corporatetfons increased approximately $41,000, or 6.9%9$6@6,000 for 2005 from $585,000 for
2004. This increase was associated with increasesbpnel expenses. Cost of revenues for our cagarallocated functions is comprised of
content support personnel who handle loading, upglamaintenance, versioning and support of corterdur Internet-based learning
platforms, which serve products within both the H&@ PMD business units.

Gross Margin (excluding depreciation and amortieai. Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessofastvenues divided by revenu
improved to 64.4% for 2005 from 63.7% during 200His improvement is a result of the change in reeemix and related cost of revenues
discussed above. Gross margins for HCO were 74r&%78.8% for 2005 and 2004, respectively. Thisidedlesulted from the acquisition of
DMR'’s survey and research services, which yielddogross margins than our Internet-based prodGetsss margins for PMD were 41.0%
and 36.3% for 2005 and 2004, respectively. Thisawpment resulted from the change in revenue mi®MD noted above. Gross margins
PMD are lower than HCO due to the higher costsa@ata with delivering live event and content depahent services, and variability of co
associated with project-based services.

Product developmenProduct development expenses increased approxin®86l7,000, or 15.7%, to $2.9 million for 2005 fr&2.5 million

for 2004. This increase resulted from increasedgrerel expenses associated with the DMR acquisitiohadditional personnel to support and
maintain our Internet-based platform products. Beddevelopment efforts for 2005 consisted prinyasflnew courseware offerings,
development of new software features, and the oggmiaintenance and support for our Intetmeted platform. Product development expe

as a percentage of revenues decreased as a fabdtiocreased revenues to 10.7% of revenuesOi@b Zrom 12.6% of revenues for 2004. As
discussed above, in addition to the expenses ieduwe also capitalized approximately $900,0000st< associated with development of
content and software features during both 2005200 .

Product development expenses for HCO increasedxzippaitely $277,000, or 13.8%, to $2.3 million f@05 from $2.0 million for 2004. The
increase resulted from additional personnel astatiaith the acquisition of DMR. Product developinexpenses for PMD were comparable
for both 2005 and 2004, approximating $388,00@f05 and $379,000 for 2004. The unallocated cotpgrartion of our product
development expenses increased approximately $20,000 76.3%, to $255,000 for 2005 from $145,0002f@04. This increase resulted from
time and efforts associated with corporate ovetsagld projects that were not specific to eitherti@0O or PMD business units.

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses, including persommséd,dncreased approximately $653,000, or 13.6%, t
$5.5 million for 2005 from $4.8 million for 2004nd approximated 19.9% and 23.9% of revenues fob 20@ 2004, respectively. The incre
resulted from additional personnel expenses adsalcweith the acquisition of DMR, increased comnaasexpense, and increased spending
associated with our annual customer conference STimemit, which was attended by 540 customer reptatiees in 2005 compared to
approximately 400 in 2004.

Sales and marketing expense for HCO increased sippately $360,000, or 10.1%, to $3.9 million for@0from $3.6 million for 2004, and
approximated 18.6% and 25.5% of revenues for 20052804, respectively. The expense increase icassd with both DMR personnel and
increased spending associated with The SummitsSaleé marketing expense for PMD increased appragignd289,000, or 28.2%, to

$1.3 million for 2005 from $1.0 million for 2004nd approximated 21.1% and 16.9% of revenues fob 20@ 2004, respectively. This
increase for PMD is associated with increaseslesgaersonnel and related commission expense. &atesiarketing expense for our
unallocated corporate functions was comparable dmtvperiods.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization increased approxity&&72,000, or 27.1%, to $2.7 million for 20050
$2.1 million for 2004. The increase is associat@éti wmortization of DMR intangible assets, amottiza of capitalized content and feature
enhancements, and depreciation of property angeugrit.

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expenses increggawmximately $324,000, or 7.0%, to $5.0 million f
2005 from $4.6 million for 2004, and approximatei1P6 and 23.1% of revenues for 2005 and 2004, ctisply. This expense increase
resulted primarily from the additional personned affice expenses associated with the DMR acqaisitand was partially offset by other
corporate expense savings. The decrease as a fegreaf revenues is the result of the increasevianues.
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Other Income/Expens@ther income/expense increased approximately $06@9.3%, to $338,000 for 2005 from $242,0002@04. This
increase resulted from an increase in interestirgcon investment in marketable securities, andpeatsally offset by increased interest
expense associated with capital lease obligations.

Provision for Income TaxeThe provision for income taxes for 2005 consist$2i,500 associated with the federal alternativaimuim tax.
Taxable income for 2005 was substantially offsetHgyutilization of our net operating loss carryfards.

Net Income (LossNet income was $1.9 million for 2005 compared teetloss of $1.0 million for 2004. The improvemé&woim a net loss in
2004 to net income in 2005 resulted from the ingeda revenues and other factors mentioned abave [@o forma basis, as if the acquisition
of DMR had occurred on January 1, 2004, pro foretsimcome would have been $2.4 million and $120f@0@005 and 2004, respectively.

2004 Compared to 2003

RevenuesRevenues increased approximately $1.9 million, (2%, to $20.1 million for 2004 from approximat&¥8.2 million for 2003.
Revenues for 2004 consisted of $14.0 million fordHénd $6.1 million for PMD. In 2003, revenues cstedd of $12.0 million for HCO and
$6.2 million for PMD. HCO revenue increases oved2@esulted from growth in the Internet-based He@htent maintenance services and
Competency Compas¥ product revenues, while revenues associated witinstalled learning management products decliesdlting from
our transition of customers to our Internet-basé€hproduct. Revenues associated with addzourseware subscriptions also declined slig
PMD revenues experienced modest declines during,3ffimarily resulting from lower live event revess) which were partially offset by
increases in revenues from sales of content deredapservices.

The Internet-based HLC subscriber base increaggw@mately 35% during 2004, from approximately 00D fully implemented subscribers
at the end of 2003, to approximately 1,040,000/fiiplemented subscribers at the end of 2004. iflsi®ase contributed to a $2.1 million
increase in HCO revenues, while content maintenaapéce revenues increased $340,000, and Compye@ompassM product revenues
increased $150,000. These HCO revenue increasespasdrally offset by slight declines in add-courseware subscription revenues. Reve
from maintenance and support fees associated witinstalled learning management products alsarmketby $550,000.

The PMD unit experienced a modest decline in regsmluring 2004. Revenues from the sales of ounenifaining and content development
services increased $130,000 during 2004. This ev@rcrease was offset by a $290,000 decline endient revenues, in part related to the
pharmaceutical and medical device industry’s caisti@sponse to compliance guidelines issued b@teand AdvaMed, which were
effective January 1, 2004. These guidelines plackitional regulations on the funding of educatigragrams.

During 2004, 65.2% of revenues were derived fromloternet-based learning products, 18.9% from évent development services, 10.7%
from content development services, and 5.2% frommatalled learning management products. During3267.2% of revenues were derived
from our Internet-based learning products, 22.58nftive event development services, 11.5% fromeandevelopment services and 8.8%
from our installed learning management products.

Cost of Revenues (excluding depreciation and amaditin).Cost of revenues increased approximately $1.0anillor 16.1%, to $7.3 million
for 2004 from approximately $6.3 million for 20@3uring 2004, we experienced increased personnaresgs, incremental costs associated
with increased content maintenance and contenfalewent revenues, and increased royalties paidstassociated with add-on courseware
subscriptions and Competency CompB&sevenues. Most of the personnel expense increassaciated with our Competency Compks
and HospitalDirect solutions, which were reflected in product develeptrexpenses in 2003, and were reflected in costvanues for 2004
because both products were being offered to custom&004. Cost of revenues as a percentage ehums increased to 36.3% for 2004 from
34.4% for 2003. This increase as a percentagevehrees resulted from increased personnel expensaha change in revenue components
discussed above.

Cost of revenues for HCO increased approximatef\8§80, or 29.4%, to $2.8 million for 2004 from &2nillion for 2003, and approximated
20.2% and 18.2% of revenues for 2004 and 2003¢entisely. This increase is a result of expensesaated with Competency Compads
personnel, increased hosting costs, and increayatties related to sales of add-on coursewareCamdpetency Compagd¥ . Cost of revenue
for PMD increased $297,000, or 8.3%, to $3.9 millio 2004 from $3.6 million in 2003, and approxie@d63.7% and 57.8% of revenues for
2004 and 2003, respectively. This increase is @tresexpenses associated with HospitalDifgmtrsonnel and higher contract labor and
materials costs associated with increases in cod@relopment revenues.

Cost of revenues for the unallocated corporatetfons increased approximately $70,000, or 13.6%5&6,000 in 2004 from $515,000 in
2003. This increase was associated with additipaedonnel expenses. Cost of revenues for our wad#ld corporate functions is comprised of
content support personnel who handle loading, upglamaintenance, versioning and support of corterdur Internet-based learning
platforms, which serve products within both the H&@ PMD business units.
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Gross Margin (excluding depreciation and amortieai. Gross margin (which we define as revenues lessofastvenues divided by revenu
declined to 63.7% during 2004 from 65.6% during20rhis decline is a result of the change in reeemix and related cost of revenues
discussed above. Gross margins for HCO were 79r&8¥84.8% for 2004 and 2003, respectively. Grosgmarfor PMD were 36.3% and
42.2% for 2004 and 2003, respectively. Gross marffinPMD are lower than HCO due to the highersassociated with delivering live ev:
and content development services, and such castgacg from project to project.

Product developmenProduct development expenses decreased approxyr$ateh,000, or 22.1%, to $2.5 million for 2004 fr&3.2 million

for 2003, and approximated 12.6% and 17.8% of regerfor 2004 and 2003, respectively. This redugtidmarily resulted from lower
personnel expenses partially due to the redesigmafipersonnel associated with our Competency @esify and HospitalDirect solutions
from product development in 2003 to cost of revanne2004. In addition, the continued consolidatibproduct development efforts resulted
in lower personnel and contract labor expensesaidl@®04. New product development efforts duringf2@@re focused on software features,
and courseware offerings that build upon our cocelpct, the Internet-based HLC. During 2004, wentdied HealthStream Expres@n
economy-scaled version of our Internet-based HUd) several new courseware offerings to furtherpmiretration and also expand existing
customer relationships. In addition to amounts egpd, we capitalized approximately $900,000 and&D in 2004 and 2003, respectively,
related to content and software features compleyettiird parties.

Product development expenses for HCO increasedzippately $77,000, or 4.0%, to $2.0 million for 200om $1.9 million for 2003, and
approximated 14.4% and 16.1% of revenues in 20042803, respectively. During 2004, personnel expemassociated with Competency
CompasdM were redesignated to cost of revenues. This shékpense was offset by increased personnel cestximted with platform
maintenance and development of new software feaforeour Internet-based products. Product devetpraxpenses for PMD decreased
approximately $521,000, or 58.0%, to $379,000 fad£2from $900,000 for 2003, and approximated 6.2% ¥14.6% of revenues for 2004 and
20083, respectively. This decline was associatel thi¢ redesignation of personnel associated witkpkialDirect®to cost of revenues as well
as reductions in the development of other coursewsrducts. The unallocated corporate portion ofoeaduct development expenses
decreased approximately $272,000, or 65.3%, to $004n 2004 from $416,000 in 2003. This declineswaesult of a shift to more HCO
related projects.

Sales and Marketing Expens&ales and marketing expenses, including persomsét,dncreased approximately $354,000, or 8.0%, to
$4.8 million for 2004 from $4.4 million for 2003nd approximated 23.9% and 24.4% of revenues fod 20@ 2003, respectively. The incre
in the amount of expenses primarily resulted fraoreéases in personnel, primarily those associatédagcount management efforts, and
increases in commissions, which were partiallyeiffsy lower advertising and marketing spending. @ission expense increased as a res!
changes in commission plans for 2004. Advertising marketing spending levels were lower in 2004 tduehanges in marketing initiatives.

Sales and marketing expense for HCO increased sippately $421,000, or 13.4%, to $3.5 million for®0from $3.1 million for 2003, and
approximated 25.5% and 26.2% of revenues for 20@42803, respectively. This increase in the amotiekpenses is primarily a result of
additional account management personnel and refieteel of approximately $500,000. Advertising andrketing expense, excluding
personnel, decreased $100,000 for HCO due to ckangearketing initiatives. Sales and marketingesge for PMD decreased approxima
$89,000 to $1.0 million for 2004 from $1.1 millidor 2003, and approximated 16.9% and 18.0% of negsriior 2004 and 2003, respectively.
PMD experienced higher commission expense in 2@@4ta changes in commission plans for 2004, butpaaally offset by reductions in
personnel and lower travel. Advertising and mariggxpense, excluding personnel, were comparalheeke periods for PMD. Sales and
marketing expense for our unallocated corporatetfans increased $22,000, and approximated $21G@@004 and $188,000 for 2003.

Depreciation and AmortizatioiDepreciation and amortization decreased approxignég1,000, or 30.9%, to $2.1 million in 2004 from
$3.0 million in 2003. Amortization decreased $0.@iam due to certain intangible assets and pregaistent development becoming fully
amortized. Depreciation expense levels were conpmtzetween periods.

Other General and Administrativ®ther general and administrative expenses decregg@dximately $352,000, or 7.1%, to $4.6 millian f
2004 from $5.0 million for 2003, and approximated1®6 and 27.4% of revenues for 2004 and 2003, cispl/. The decrease is a result of
lower personnel expenses as a result of consaiglabrporate functions.

Other general and administrative expenses for H&@ease slightly approximating $181,000 for 200d $ih73,000 for 2003, and
approximated 1.2% and 1.5% of revenues for 20042808, respectively. Other general and adminiseagkpenses for PMD decreased
approximately $109,000, to $116,000 for 2004 fr@22%000 for 2003, and approximated 1.9% and 3.6%\anues for 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The decrease for PMD resulted froducgons in personnel. Other general and admitig&r@xpenses for the unallocated
corporate functions decreased $234,000 to $4.4omilbr 2004 from $4.6 million for 2003. This redion resulted from lower personnel and
other corporate expenses.
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Other Income/Expens@ther income/expense decreased approximately $2@500 37.3%, to $242,000 for 2004 from $387,0002f203. The
decrease resulted from a reduction of interestmmc@rom investments in marketable securities aredtduower invested balances and lower
yield rates

Net LossNet loss decreased approximately $2.4 million, %886, to a loss of $1.0 million for 2004 from adas $3.4 million for 2003, due
the factors mentioned above.

SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected stateméiiperations data for the eight quarters ended Dbee 31, 2005 both in absolute dollars and
as a percentage of total revenues. The inform#&tioaach quarter has been prepared on substarttiallyame basis as the audited statements
included in other parts of this report and, in opinion, includes all adjustments, consisting diyarormal recurring adjustments, necessary for
a fair presentation of the results of operatiomgtiese periods. You should read this informationdnjunction with HealthStream’s
Consolidated Financial Statements and related tiogzsto included elsewhere in this report. Theratireg results for any quarter are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expmkotahe future.

Factors Affecting Quarterly Operating Results

Revenues from our subscription products are reeegmniatably over the subscription term. Revenums §ales of products and services to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies cauliject to seasonal factors resulting from thentgnof conferences and live events as well
as drug and product introductions and budget cyfolesuch companies. DMR’s survey and researchmgs® are impacted by seasonal factors
resulting from the timing of survey cycles, wittetfourth quarter comprising the highest percentdgmnual revenues.

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2005 2005 2005 2005
(In thousands, except per share date

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Revenues, ne $ 5,68 $ 6,80¢ $ 6,831 $ 8,04(
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin) 2,03¢ 2,46( 2,392 2,85¢
Product developmel 63€ 743 72C 82¢
Sales and marketir 1,19( 1,601 1,34( 1,321
Depreciatior 40¢ 40z 374 354
Amortization 21C 35¢ 27¢ 294
Other general and administrative exper 1,15¢ 1,272 1,24 1,28¢
Total operating costs and expen 5,63¢ 6,83¢ 6,34¢ 6,941
Income (loss) from operatiol 46 (30 482 1,09¢
Other income, ne 98 68 72 10C
Income before income tax 144 38 554 1,19¢
Provision for income taxe — 15 — 7
Net income $ 144 $ 23 $ 554 $ 1,197

Net income per shar

Basic $ 0.01 $ 0.0C $ 0.0 $ 0.0€

Diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.0C $ 0.0z $ 0.0t
Weighted average shares of common stock outstan

Basic 20,68t¢ 21,05¢ 21,21; 21,25:

Diluted 21,467 22,06¢ 22,357 21,88:
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenues, n¢
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciatior
Amortization
Other general and administrative exper
Total operating costs and expen
Loss from operation
Other income, ne

Net income (loss

Net income (loss) per shal
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic

Diluted

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenue:
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciatior
Amortization
Other general and administrative exper

Total operating costs and expen

Income (loss) from operatiol
Other income, ne

Income before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net income

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenue:
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciatior
Amortization
Other general and administrative exper
Total operating costs and expen
Loss from operation
Other income, ne

Net income (loss

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
2004 2004 2004 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)
$ 4,90¢ $ 4,691 $ 5,032 5,42¢
1,89( 1,751 1,77¢ 1,86(
647 634 65¢ 591
1,15% 1,20¢ 1,101 1,33¢
314 33C 344 37¢
174 17¢ 192 20C
1,19¢ 1,17( 1,20z 1,067
5,371 5,26¢ 5,27¢ 5,43:
(46<) (574) (242) (6)
50 45 65 83
$ (419 $ (529 $ 177 77
$ 0.02) $ (0.0 3 (0.07) 0.0C
$ (0.0 $ (0.09 $ (0.01) 0.0C

20,44 20,58: 20,65¢ 20,66(

20,44 20,58: 20,65¢ 21,12¢
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2005 2005 2005 2005
(% of Revenues)

100.( 100.C 100.¢ 100.¢
35.¢ 36.1 35.C 35.€
11.2 10.€ 10.5 10.:
20.¢ 23.5 19.€ 16.4

7.2 5.9 5.5 4.4
3.7 5.3 4.1 3.7
20.5 18.7 18.2 16.C
99.Z 100.£ 92.¢ 86.2
0.8 (0.4) 7.1 13.7
1.7 1.C 1.1 1.2
2.5 0.6 8.1 14.¢
— 0.2 — 0.1
2.5 0.4 8.1 14.¢
Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004
(% of Revenues)

100.( 100.C 100.( 100.(
38.5 37. 35.2 34.z
13.2 13.5 13.1 10.€
23.€ 25.7 21.¢ 24.€

6.4 7.0 6.8 7.0
3.5 3.7 3.8 3.7
24.: 25.C 23.€ 19.7

109.t 112.2 104.¢ 100.1

(9.5 (12.2) (4.6) (0.2)
1.C 1.C 1.2 1.5
(8.9 (11.2) (3.5 1.4
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since our inception, we have financed our operatlargely through proceeds from our IPO, privatepments of equity securities, loans from
related parties and, to an increasing extent, frewvenues generated from the sale of our produdsarvices.

Net cash provided by operating activities was agipnately $5.0 million during 2005 compared to $38) during 2004. This improveme
resulted from an increase in revenues, includimgvgr in our historical business and the impachefacquisition of DMR, and related cash
receipts from customers, as well as receipts ofreerial support grants used to support our livenesetivities. The primary uses of cash to
fund our operations includes personnel expensgaltyopayments, payments for contract labor anerdlirect expenses associated with
delivery of our products and services, general @@fe expenses, as well as payments associatedavitbnt and feature enhancements. The
number of days sales outstanding (DSO) for 200584dadays compared to 72 days for 2004. This imprmrg resulted from improved cash
collections from our HCO customers, including thmpact of the acquisition of DMR, but was partial§set by longer collection cycles from
our PMD customers. The Company calculates DSO Wigidg the accounts receivable balance (excludimglled and other receivables) by
average daily revenues for the year. Cash provigeaberating activities during 2004 resulted fromstt receipts from customers, offset by «
used to fund operations and purchases of contehtemture enhancements.

Net cash used in investing activities was approsefges2.3 million and $1.5 million in 2005 and 2Q0dspectively. We utilized approximate
$9.5 million of cash and investments to purchaseRDiMiring 2005, which includes direct, incrementqlenses associated with the acquisit
Our capital additions during 2005 and 2004 wermprily comprised of hardware and software to supi@ growth of our product
infrastructure, primarily our Internet-based leagnplatform. The decrease in capital expenditum® $1.6 million during 2004 to $752,000
during 2005 primarily resulted from adding a sechodting facility during 2004, and fewer assetaepments and utilization of capital lease
arrangements during 2005. We expect that our dapitsenditures will increase during 2006 over lsw@tperienced during 2005.

Cash provided by financing activities was approxeha$722,000 and $176,000 during 2005 and 20Gpeetively. The primary sources of
cash for both 2005 and 2004 resulted from procassaciated with the issuance of common stock froth the exercise of employee stock
options and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,tdffspayments under capital lease obligations. Caskipts from the exercise of stock
options increased approximately $506,000 duringp2@ash received from stock options is dependemamy factors, including our stock
price, option exercise prices, and the option htddatent to exercise. Due to these factors weuaiable to estimate future proceeds from stock
options.

Our cash and cash equivalents, restricted casésiments in marketable securities, and relatedestteeceivable balances decreased from
$16.5 million at December 31, 2004 to $12.2 millarDecember 31, 2005. The most significant portibthis decline resulted from

$9.5 million paid in connection with the acquisitiof DMR, which was partially offset by approximigt&5.0 million of cash generated from
operations, stock option exercises, and employssk gturchase plan activity.

As of December 31, 2005, our primary source ofitlqy was $12.2 million of cash and cash equivaengstricted cash, investments in
marketable securities, and related interest reb&iv&Ve have no bank credit facility or other ingeiness other than capital lease obligations.
As of February 28, 2006, we had cash and cash &lguits, restricted cash, investments and relatedeist receivable of approximately

$13.5 million. The primary increase in cash andcaaguivalents, restricted cash, investments in gtatie securities, and related interest
receivable since December 31, 2005 resulted framipes from customers, net of our operating expease payments to vendors.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalentsjatest cash, investments in marketable securitielralated interest receivable will be
sufficient to meet anticipated cash needs for waglkiapital, new product development, and capitpkeritures for at least the next 12 months.
As part of our growth strategy, we are activelyigaing possible acquisitions that complement oadpcts and services. We anticipate that
these acquisitions, if any, will be effected thrbwgcombination of stock and cash considerationnmvilg need to raise additional capital
through the issuance of equity securities or borirmm lenders to finance potential acquisitionseTésuance of stock as consideration for an
acquisition could have a dilutive effect on ourcitprice. Failure to generate sufficient cash ffoem operations or raise additional capital
when required during or following any potential aisifions in sufficient amounts and on terms acakletto us could harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Commitments and Contingencies

We expect that our capital expenditures and comterthases will be approximately $3.5 million ir0DB0We expect to fund these capital
expenditures with existing cash and investmentsfiaomd cash generated from operations. We may émigicapital lease agreements for some
of these asset purchases. From January 1 throlghdfg 28, 2006, we had capital expenditures of@pmately $112,000, primarily related

to hardware and software additions.
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Our strategic alliances have typically providedgayments to content partners based on revenuedesretbpment partners and other parties
based on services rendered. We expect to contimikisarrangements in the future. We also haveragments for our live event services
associated with securing hotel arrangements, wdnietypically fully funded from commercial suppgrants. In addition to these
commitments, we have capital lease obligationsapaating lease commitments for our operating ifeeslin Nashville, TN, Franklin, TN and
Denver, CO, and a facility in Dallas, TX, which weblease.

A summary of future anticipated payments for commeits and other contractual obligations are owutlinelow:

Payments due by peric

More than !
Less than 1 ye: 1-3 years 3-5 years years Total
Capital lease obligatior $ 190,90! $ 229,32 $ — $ = $ 420,22t
Operating lease 911,21¢ 1,043,27 492,55! — 2,447,04
Purchase commitmen 456,82! — — — 456,82!
Other contractual obligatior 1,556,67. — — — 1,556,67
Total $ 3,115,62. $1,272,59: $492,55: $ — $4,880,77.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The extent of the Company'’s off-balance sheet gearents is described above.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Stansl&ualard (FASB) issued Statement of Financial ActiogrnStandards No. 123(R), “Share-
Based Payments.” Statement 123(R) supersedes AtimgRrinciples Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accdiny for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and requires companies to recognizepeasation expense, using a fair-value based methiodosts related to share-based
payments, including stock options. The Statemecaime effective in the first interim or annual retpay period beginning after December 15,
2005. The Company adopted Statement 123(R) on dathu2006 and implemented it on a modified-prosipedasis. We estimate that share-
based compensation expense to be recognized utedem@nt 123(R) will range between $500,000 and®0D for 2006. Actual share-based
compensation expense in 2006 could differ from d¢isismate depending on the timing and size of nsards granted, changes in the market
price or volatility of our common stock, changesigk-free interest rates, or if actual forfeituxesy significantly from our estimates.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We are exposed to market risk from changes inésteiates. We do not have any foreign currencyaxgh rate risk or commodity price risk.
As of December 31, 2005, we had no outstandingoitedimess other than approximately $382,000 of @klpiase obligations. Accordingly, the
Company is not exposed to significant interest nadeket risk with respect to liabilities. The Compas exposed to market risk with respect to
its cash and investment balances. At December®15,2he Company had cash and cash equivalentsctes cash, investments in marketa
securities, and related interest receivable tagadipproximately $12.2 million. Current investmegiies of return approximate48. Assuming
3.5% rate of return on $12.2 million, a hypothdtit@ decrease in interest rates would decreaseesitincome and decrease in net income on
an annualized basis by approximately $43,000.

The Company manages its investment risk by invgstircorporate debt securities, foreign corporatietdsecured corporate debt, and
municipal debt securities with minimum acceptalskedi ratings. For certificates of deposit and cogpe obligations, ratings must be A2/A or
better; A1/P1 or better for commercial paper; ABtbetter for taxable or tax advantaged auctioa saturities and AAA or better for tax free
auction rate securities. The Company also reqtiir@sall securities must mature within 24 montlwrfithe original settlement date, the ave
portfolio shall not exceed 18 months, and the greatt 10% or $5.0 million shall mature within 90ydaFurther, the Company’s investment
policy also limits concentration exposure and ofp@ential risk areas. As of December 31, 2005fadiur investments in marketable securities
were in auction rate securities.

The above market risk discussion and the estimatealints presented are forwdomdking statements of market risk assuming the oecge o
certain adverse market conditions. Actual resulthé future may differ materially from those pipd as a result of actual developments i
market.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
HealthStream, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembe2(®15 and 2004, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholelgugty, and cash flows for each of the three gearthe period ended December 31, 2005.
These financial statements are the responsibititiedo Company’s management. Our responsibilitp isxXpress an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ait @futhie Company'’s internal control over finanadiaporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigboeting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesréxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusms and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaidating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referre@love present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 2005 and 20@#hee consolidated results of its operations &éddsh flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2005, in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashville, Tennesse
February 17, 2006
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments in short term marketable secur
Restricted cas
Interest receivabl
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdfttounts of $115,090 and $234,167 at Decembe
2005 and 2004, respective
Accounts receivabl— unbilled
Prepaid development fees, net of amortiza
Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Total current asse
Property and equipmer
Equipment
Leasehold improvemen
Furniture and fixture

Less accumulated depreciation and amortize

Goodwill

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortizaifdv,247,828 and $6,695,922 at December 31, .
and 2004, respective

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Accrued compensation and related expe
Registration liabilities
Commercial support liabilitie
Deferred revenu
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Total current liabilities
Capital lease obligations, less current por
Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder equity:
Common stock, no par value, 75,000,000 shares aztllo 21,574,904 and 20,667,515 shares is
and outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2004ectgply
Accumulated defici
Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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December 31,

December 31,

2005 2004
$ 572615  $ 2,257,37
6,175,001 14,025,00
238,53 184,04:
54,52 25,89¢
4,691,40; 3,990,59
706,01 475,46
684,35 542,82
950,68 850,52
19,226,66 22,351,71
7,446,45. 6,402,34:
1,281,461 1,267,13:
1,011,87 931,11
9,739,78 8,600,59:
(7,636,30) (6,281,31)
2,103,48. 2,319,28:
10,317,39 3,306,68!
3,264,31 166,22(
304,28° 291,77
$35216,14  $ 28,435,68
$ 93389 $ 830,94
1,487,56: 1,117,36
639,46¢ 284,30
231,14: 174,69
1,239,12. 378,89
4,502,92. 3,866,28:
166,02: 24,11
9,200,14: 6,676,59
215,85¢ 29,42t
93,799,93 91,642,38
(67,999,79)  (69,912,71)
25,800,14 21,729,66
$35,216,14  $28,435,68
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues, n¢
Operating costs and expens
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciatior

Amortization of intangibles, content fees, feateniancements, fixed royalties, ¢

prepaid compensatic
Other general and administrative exper

Total operating costs and expen

Income (loss) from operatiol
Other income (expense
Interest and other incon
Interest expens
Other expens
Total other income (expens
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision for income taxe
Net income (loss

Net income (loss) per shai
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average shares of common stock outstan
Basic

Diluted

For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

$27,359,40  $20,057,30  $18,195,07
9,745,47 7,277,17. 6,267,74
2,928,11; 2,531,17 3,247,241
5,452,16: 4,798,68 4,444,99
1,537,95! 1,366,211 1,371,01.
1,140,48, 740,54 1,676,45.
4,958,50! 4,634,37 4,986,31
25,762,69 21,348,17 21,993,76
1,596,70: (1,290,86) (3,798,69)
367,70 258,14« 415,41¢
(23,529 (13,09%) (22,46¢)
(6,467) (2,565) (6,286)
337,72 242,48 386,66
1,934,42; (1,048,38)) (3,412,03)
21,50( — —

$ 1,012,920  $(1,048,38)  $(3,412,03)
$ 006 $ (0.0 $  (0.17)
$ 006 $ (0.0 $  (0.17)
21,051,37 20,585,82 20,383,13
21,942,18 20,585,82 20,383,13

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstaitements.
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Balance at December 31, 20

Net loss

Unrealized loss on investments in marketable
securities, net of ta

Comprehensive los

Exercise of stock optior

Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock
Purchase Pla

Modification of stock option grar

Balance at December 31, 2C

Net loss

Unrealized loss on investments in market:
securities, net of ta

Comprehensive los

Exercise of stock optior

Issuance of common stock to Employee Si
Purchase Pla

Balance at December 31, 2C

Net income

Exercise of stock optior

Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock
Purchase Pla

Issuance of common stock in connection with
acquisition

Balance at December 31, 20

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Other Total
Common Stock Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amount Deficit Income Equity

20,322,68 $91,223,05 $(65,452,30) $ 125,53¢ $25,896,28
— — (3,412,03) — (3,412,03)
— — — (120,067) (120,06))
(3,532,09)

88,31¢ 150,36( — — 150,36(
44,74( 38,02¢ — — 38,02¢

— 5,41z — — 5,41z
20,455,74 91,416,85 (68,864,33) 5,47¢ 22,557,98
- - (1,048,38) - (1,048,38)
— — — (5,475 (5,475
(1,053,85))

121,50: 148,80 — — 148,80
90,26¢ 76,72¢ — — 76,72¢
20,667,51 91,642,38 (69,912,71) — 21,729,66.
— — 1,912,92 — 1,912,92
344,41 654,95¢ — — 654,95!
83,74: 159,44! — — 159,44!
479,23¢ 1,343,14! — — 1,343,14!
21,574,90 $93,799,93 $(67,999,79) $ — $25,800,14
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to meshcprovided by (used in) operating

activities:
Depreciatior

Amortization of intangibles, content fees, featardancements, fixed royalties,

and prepaid compensati
Impairment of capitalized content development 1
Provision for doubtful accoun
Non cash compensation expel
Realized loss on disposal of property and equipr

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, exatpdffects of acquisition:

Accounts and unbilled receivabl
Restricted cas

Interest receivabl

Prepaid development fe

Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Other asset

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities and compensati
Registration liabilities

Commercial support liabilitie
Deferred revenu

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition, net of cash acquir

Proceeds from maturities and sale of investmentsarketable securitie
Purchases of investments in marketable secu

Collection of note receivab- related party

Purchases of property and equipm

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issuance of common stock to Employee Stock PurchEst
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti

Payments on capital lease obligatir

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paic

Income taxes pai
Capital lease obligations incurr
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjaisiof company

Effects of acquisition
Estimated fair value of tangible assets acqu
Estimated fair value of liabilities assum
Purchase price in excess of net tangible assetsradi
Less fair value of stock issut
Cash paic
Less cash acquire
Net cash paid for acquisitic

For the Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$ 1,912,920  $ (1,048,38) $ (3,412,03)
1,537,95' 1,366,211 1,371,01.
1,140,48, 740,54 1,676,45.
55,00 — —
40,00( 40,00( 192,50(
_ — 5,41z
5,69¢ 1,15¢ 14,81«
(524,46 (1,415,51) 311,75
(54,49°) 539,83’ 111,55¢
(28,62 93,361 187,244
(564,77 (582,739 (269,54:)
(189,69) (127,309 (246,89()
(44,507) (83,75() 107,26
68,15t (34,036) 146,17
475,07: 260,72 (802,37)
56,44t (560,56¢) (165,38
860,23 378,89: —
427,71 807,03 (286,97()
5,173,11 375,46t (1,059,01)
(9,524,07)) — —
20,500,00 18,951,00 13,809,00
(12,650,00)  (19,077,04)  (13,000,00)
— 233,00 —
(752,22 (1,620,901 (720,48;)
(2,426,29) (1,513,94) 88,51¢
159,44 76,72¢ 38,02¢
654,95! 148,80« 150,36(
(92,440) (49,487) (67,71)
721,96 176,04 120,67:
3,468,77' (962,43 (849,829
2,257,37; 3,219,80 4,069,63.
$ 572615 $ 2257370 $ 3,219,80
$ 2352« $ 13,098 $  22.46¢
$ 15000 $ — 3 —
$ 42077 $  62,80: $ —
$ 134314 $ — 3 —
$ 71835  $ — % —
(494,02 — —
10,660,70 — —
(1,343,14) _ _
9,541,88 — —
(17,81) — —
$ 952407 $ —  $ —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteitements
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

HealthStream, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorpordteti990 as a Tennessee corporation and is headgegin Nashville, Tennessee. We
provide Internebased services and solutions to meet the ongaagrig, information, and education needs of thdtheare community. The:
solutions provide, deliver and track computer basshatation for our customers in the United Stadtesugh our application service provider
(ASP) products and installed learning managemestdymts. On March 28, 2005, we acquired Data Manage® Research, Inc. (DMR),
which provides healthcare organizations a wide easfgjuality and satisfaction surveys, analysesuofey results, and other research-based
services. We develop, manage, and distribute ¢éimBne and print education and training activiiesprovider-based healthcare professionals
and physicians as well as online education anditrgiactivities for sales representatives, whighall supported by pharmaceutical and
medical device companies.

Business Segments

We operate our business in two segments: 1) sarpiaer/ided to healthcare organizations and prafesss, and 2) services provided to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies. SErvachealthcare organizations and professionelsda offerings of our Internet-based
learning products, including authoring, survey agkarch services, maintenance and support ohetalled learning management products,
courseware subscriptions, content maintenancecamgbetency tools. Our services to pharmaceutichhaedical device companies include
live and online educational training activities faalthcare professionals, content developmentcgervas well as online training for medical
industry representatives.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues are derived from providing services thnaug Internet-based learning products, provisibsuovey and research services,
maintenance and support of our installed learniagaggement products, courseware subscriptionseligat development, content maintene
and development and other education and trainingcsss.

We recognize revenue in accordance with Americatitlte of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) &ment of Position (SOP) 97-2,
“Software Revenue Recognition,” SEC Staff AccougtBulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition,” Emergisgues Task Force (EITF) Issue
No. 9¢-19 “Reporting Revenue Gross Versus Net,” EITFdssi. 00-3 “Application of AICPA Statement of Pamit 97-2, Software Revenue
Recognition, to Arrangements that Include the Righise Software Stored on Another Entity’s HardsyaEITF Issue No. 00-21 “Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” and otlaerthoritative guidance. This guidance provides teatnue recognized from software and
other arrangements is to be allocated to each eleofi¢he arrangement based on the relative fdiregaof the elements. While elements
include software products and post contract cust@umgport, fair value of each element is basedijeative evidence specific to the vendor. If
fair value cannot be determined for each elemetti®fairrangement, all revenue from the arrangemetdferred until fair value can be
determined or until all elements of the arrangenaeatdelivered and customer acceptance has occ@aéxbs of our Internet-based learning
products include customer support, implementatemises, and training; therefore all revenues &ferded until the Internet-based learning
product is implemented, at which time revenues@cegnized ratably over the subscription servia#opeIn the event that circumstances
occur, which give rise to uncertainty regarding ¢b#ectibility of contracted amounts, revenue igtition is suspended until such uncertainty
is resolved. Fees for these services are billegither a monthly, quarterly, or annual basis.

Revenues derived from the delivery of servicesuloour Internebased learning products and courseware subscripgirecognized ratal
over the term of the subscription service agreen&uwitware support and maintenance revenues agseigth our installed learning
management products are recognized ratably oveethreof the related agreement, generally one y@ter training revenues are generally
recognized upon the completion of training.

Revenues recognized from our survey and researctteg are determined using the proportional pertorce method. Revenues are earned
over the estimated survey cycle, which typicallyges from less than one month to up to four morithe.survey cycle is generally initiated
based on the receipt of the first survey responderians through provision of related survey reptrtthe customer. All other revenues are
recognized as the related services are performpdbducts are delivered. Fees for these servieebilied upon initiation of the survey cycle,
with progress billings made throughout the survwegles

Revenues derived from live event development sesvice recognized using the proportional performanethod based on the completion of
performance milestones. Revenues from content sra@nice and development services are recognizeg agiarcentage of completion met
based on labor hours, which correspond to the cetiopl of performance milestones and deliverabldisother revenues are recognized as the
related services are performed or products argetelil. Fees for these services are billed at fiuitieof the project and upon completion of the
project.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries, allfuth are wholly-owned. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etediimaconsolidation.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to tho paar’s financial statements to conform with tlierent year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetiets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assmsihiat affect the amounts reported in the findrsté&iements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codatdid financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider cash and cash equivalents to be uictedtrhighly liquid investments with initial matties of less than three months.

Restricted Cash

Cash received for registration fees is classiftedestricted cash on the accompanying consolids&thce sheets. The use of this cash is
restricted because it is held on behalf of the cenaial supporter until services have been rendetedghich time the registration fees are used
to pay certain expenses and fees for conductingetBervices. Excess registration funds are typicaihitted to the commercial supporter or
applied to other projects. Any deficiency in regatibn funds is billed to the commercial supporter.

Accounts Receivable-Unbilled and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents revenueegbior contracts accounted for on the proportipesformance basis for which invoices
have not been generated or contractual billingdase not been reached. Deferred revenue repsemmounts, which have been billed or
collected, but not yet recognized in revenue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company estimates its allowance for doubtfabaats using a specific identification method. Mgeraent determines the allowance for
doubtful accounts on a case-by-case basis, bas#t dacts and circumstances surrounding each paltgruncollectible receivable. An
allowance is also maintained for accounts thahatespecifically identified that may become uncdiilele in the future. Uncollectible
receivables are writteoff in the period management believes it has exiealusvery opportunity to collect payment from thistomer. Bad del
expense is recorded when events or circumstandesate an additional allowance is required basedwrspecific identification approach.

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountstaacamounts charged to bad debt expense werelasgol

Allowance Balance ai Charged to Costs anc Allowance Balance ai
Beginning of Period Expenses Write -offs End of Period
Year ended December
2005 $234,16° $ 40,00( $159,07° $115,09(
2004 $278,50: $ 40,00( $ 84,33t $234,16°
2003 $295,70: $192,50( $209,70: $278,50:
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Investments in marketable securities

Investments in marketable securities are class#gedvailable-for-sale and are stated at fair maskiee, with any unrealized gains and losses,
net of tax, reported in other comprehensive incoméhe accompanying consolidated balance sheetdizBe gains and losses and declines in
market value judged to be other-than-temporaryneestments in marketable securities are includédt@rest and other income on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operatidres cost of securities sold is based on the spedéntification method. Interest and
dividends on securities classified as availablesfile are included in interest and other incoméheraccompanying consolidated statements of
operations.

The Company invests in auction rate securitiepa@ate debt securities, foreign corporate debtsaudred corporate debt securities with
minimum acceptable credit ratings. The Companysifias investments in auction rate securities astdlerm investments although their
scheduled maturities may be greater than 12 momtiis.determination is based on management’s irteholding such securities for less than
12 months from the current balance sheet date.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated on the basisstf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assetder capital leases and leasehold improvemetiishvare amortized over the shorter of the
estimated useful life or their respective leasmter

Years
Furniture and fixture 5-1C
Equipment 35

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase priee fair value of net tangible assets acquired. Wé®ant for goodwill and intangible assets
accordance with Statement of Financial Accountiten8ards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other IntligAssets.” We measure goodwill
for impairment at the reporting unit level usindiacounted cash flow model to determine the faiu@®f the reporting units. We will perform
our goodwill impairment test whenever events omgles in facts or circumstances indicate that inmpait may exist, or at least annually
during the fourth quarter each year.

Intangible assets acquired through acquisitionsaneprised of content, contract rights, customkti@nships, non-competition agreements
and favorable lease rights. As of December 31, 20@Hgible assets with remaining unamortized badarinclude contract rights, customer
relationships and non-competition agreements reebitdl connection with the acquisition of DMR. Ing@lnle assets are considered to have
definite useful lives and are being amortized atraight line basis over the expected periods todmefited, generally three to five years for
content, two to eight years for contract rightsstomer lists and customer relationships, six motahbree years for non-competition
agreements, and over the lease term for favorabkelrights. Our weighted average amortizatiorogdar definite lived intangible assets as of
December 31, 2005 is 7.7 years. Intangible assetegiewed for impairment whenever events or ckarig facts or circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of the assets may noebeverable.

Long-Lived Assets

We account for assets of a long term nature (“lmed assets”) in accordance with SFAS No. 144;counting for the Impairment or Dispo:

of Long-Lived Assets,” which requires that companiensider whether events or changes in facts iatuhtstances, both internally and
externally, may indicate that an impairment of ldivgd assets held for use are present. We measyrénpairment at the reporting unit level
based on discounted future cash flows from thertgypunit including the long-lived assets. Theltflew estimates and discount rates
incorporate management’s best estimates, usingpppgate and customary assumptions and projectiptieealate of evaluation. Management
periodically evaluates the carrying value of longedl assets, including property and equipment,raksets and intangible assets. We recorded
a $55,000 impairment charge associated with coutevglopment fees for the year ended December(8h. Xhere were no impairments
identified or recorded for the years ended Decerhe2004 and 2003.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Other Assets

Other assets are comprised of the long term podi@montent development fees and feature enhandsard other assets of a long term
nature.

Income Taxes

Income taxes have been provided using the liabiigghod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounfior Income Taxes.” Under the
liability method, deferred tax assets and lialgtare determined based on the temporary diffesdmemveen the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities measured at tex that will be in effect for the year in which ttiéferences are expected to affect taxable
income. Valuation allowances are established wiesessary to reduce deferred tax assets to amoyrgsted to be realized.

Commercial Support Liabilities

Commercial support liabilities represent grant fineceived from entities supporting educationavdigs, such as live events, in which we are
the accredited provider. The funds are unrestrijcad are primarily used to pay for expenses aagativith conducting the event.

Advertising

We expense the costs of advertising as incurredéordance with SOP 93-7, “Reporting on Advertisdasts.” Advertising expense for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003ppasx@mately $123,000, $226,000, and $413,000 actbely.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs that are associatddaut products and services are included in costwdnues.

Product Development Costs

Product development costs include internal andreateosts to develop and convert content for aterhet-based learning and installed
learning management products. We capitalize theafaontent and features developed by third pastibere the life expectancy is greater 1
one year and the anticipated cash flows from sochent or feature is expected to exceed its castind both 2005 and 2004, we capitalized
approximately $900,000 related to third party cahtnd feature development completed by third eartCapitalized content development ¢
are included in the accompanying consolidated lalaheets under the captions “prepaid developreest find “other assets.” Capitalized
feature development costs are included in the apaoging consolidated balance sheets under theooagtother prepaid expenses and other
current assets” and “other assets.” We amortizéecdand feature development over its expecteguiféch is generally one to three years.
Content development and feature development coatdhiive been capitalized are subject to a periogpairment review in accordance with
our policy.

We account for Web site development costs in a@are with EITF Issue No. 00-2 “Accounting for WebkePevelopment Costs,” and SOP
98-1 “Accounting for the Costs of Computer SoftwBeveloped or Obtained for Internal Use,” which\pdes guidance on capitalization
versus expensing of costs incurred to develop a $ifebWe capitalize costs incurred during the ttgwment phase for such projects when !
costs are material. Maintenance and operating eostexpensed as incurred. As of December 31, 2082004, we had no capitalized intel
development costs for computer software developedesale. We did not capitalize any internal Wigh development costs during 2005 or
2004, since the costs related to planning or ojmeratf such products and sites.

38




Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Net Income (Loss) Per Share

We compute net income (loss) per share in accoedaiitt SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” Underglovisions of Statement 128, basic
net income (loss) per share is computed by dividiirggnet income (loss) available to common shadshslifor the period by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtiégeriod. Diluted net income (loss) per shaeoimputed by dividing the net income
(loss) for the period by the weighted average numabeommon and common equivalent shares outstgrdiining the period. Common
equivalent shares, composed of incremental comrares issuable upon the exercise of stock optiodsarrants, escrowed or restricted
shares, and shares subject to vesting are incindditited net income per share to the extent tisbsees are dilutive. Common equivalent
shares are dilutive when the average market pricaglthe period exceeds the exercise price ofittterlying shares. Common equivalent
shares that have an anti-dilutive effect on dilutetincome (loss) per share have been excludettfie calculation of diluted weighted
average shares outstanding for the years endedibece31, 2005, 2004, and 2003.

Concentrations of Credit Risk and Significant Custaners

We place our temporary excess cash investmentglinquality, short-term money market instrumentstiies, such investments may be in
excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

We sell our learning management systems and otheragion services to various companies in the heale industry that are located in the
United States. We perform ongoing credit evaluaiohour customers’ financial condition and genignaquire no collateral from customers.
We have one significant customer, HCA, who compkigpproximately 14% or $3.9 million, of net reveswiring 2005, approximately 15%,
or $2.9 million, of net revenues during 2004, apdraximately 15%, or $2.7 million, of net revenuksing 2003. The total amounts receive
from HCA at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were apprately $250,000 and $540,000, respectively.

Stock Based Compensation

We grant stock options for a fixed number of shamesmployees and other parties with an exercige piot less than the fair value of the
shares at the grant date. We account for stockmpgtiants in accordance with Accounting Princifdesrd Opinion (APB) No. 25Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees” and related integpiens. Under APB 25, because the exercise pfiogioemployee stock options is not less
than the market price of the underlying stock andhte of grant, no compensation expense is regofaethe extent that options are issued to
members of our advisory boards or non-employeesyaltue of such options is measured in accordaitbetlne provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” We hdigelosed the fair value recognition requiremefitSAS No. 123 and the additional
disclosure requirements as specified in SFAS N8, 14ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Traosiand Disclosure,” which amended
SFAS No. 123.

If the alternative method of accounting for stos&entive plans prescribed by Statement 123 had fodlewed, our net income (loss) and net
income (loss) per share would have been:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Net income (loss) as report $1,912,92 $(1,048,38)) $(3,412,03)
Add: Stocl-based employee compensation expense includeddnteelpnet incom:

(loss), net of related tax — — 5,412
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensatioaresgpdetermined under fair valu

based method for all awards, net of related tasct$ (586,80:) (542,56() (755,909
Pro forma net income (los $1,326,12. $(1,590,94) $(4,162,52)
Basic net income (loss) per sh— as reportes $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05) $ (0.17)
Basic net income (loss) per sh— pro forma $ 0.0€ $ (0.0¢) $ (0.20)
Diluted net income (loss) per shi— as reported $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0%) $ (0.17)
Diluted net income (loss) per she— pro forma $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0¢) $ (0.20)
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont inued)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following methods and assumptions were usedtimating fair value for financial instruments:

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cade carrying amounts approximate the fair valueabse of the short-term maturity or short-term
nature of such instruments.

Accounts receivable, accounts receivi-unbilled, interest receivable, accounts payabtEraed liabilities and deferred revenuehe carrying
amounts, net of any allowance for doubtful accouepproximate the fair value because of the sleon+inature of such instruments.

Investments in marketable securitiThe carrying amounts approximate the fair valuesbam quoted market prices.

Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Stansl&ulard (FASB) issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Bd&sgnents.” Statement 123(R)
supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for &ttssued to Employees,” and will require compamdegecognize compensation expense,
using a fair-value based method, for costs relateshare-based payments, including stock optiandpkil 2005, the Securities and Exchange
Commission amended the effective date of the Sextéto begin with the first interim or annual rejiog period of the first fiscal year
beginning on or after December 15, 2005. The Compalopted Statement 123(R) on January 1, 2006rapimented it on a modified-
prospective basis. We estimate that share-basefermation expense to be recognized under Statet®d(R) will range between $500,000
and $700,000 for 2006. Actual share-based compensatpense in 2006 could differ from this estiméégpending on the timing and size of
new awards granted, changes in the market prigelatility of our common stock, changes in riskdfiaterest rates, or if actual forfeitures
vary significantly from our estimates.

2. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On March 28, 2005, the Company acquired all ofstioek of DMR for approximately $10.7 million, costing of $9.1 million in cash and
479,234 shares of our common stock. Of the comrtak portion, 319,489 shares are being held insanogv account for eighteen months
from the acquisition date, subject to any clainrsifidemnification pursuant to the stock purchaseagent. The Company also incurred di
incremental expenses associated with the acquisifiapproximately $0.4 million. DMR provides hédwiare organizations a wide range of
quality and satisfaction surveys, data analysesinfey results, and other research-based measurémén The results of operations for DMR
have been included in the Company’s statement efatipns, effective March 29, 2005. The final pasé price allocation is as follows:

Estimated fair value of tangible assets acqu $ 718,35
Estimated fair value of liabilities assum (494,029
Purchase price in excess of net tangible assetsradc 10,660,70
Less fair value of stock issu (1,343,14)
Cash paic 9,541,88
Less cash acquire (17,817
Net cash paid for acquisitic $ 9,524,07!

The purchase price in excess of the net tangilsletasicquired was allocated as follows:

Goodwill $7,010,70!
Customer related intangibl $3,400,001
Non-compete agreeme $ 250,00(
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2. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The following unaudited pro forma results of openas give effect to the operations of DMR as if #ogjuisition had occurred as of January 1,
2005 and 2004. These unaudited pro forma resubp@fations include certain adjustments arisingnftbe acquisition such as owner
compensation and amortization expense. The prodeasults of operations do not purport to represgat the Company’s results of
operations would have been had such transactidiastimccurred at the beginning of the period prése or to project the Compasyresults o
operations in any future period.

Year Ended December 31

2005 2004
Revenue (pr-forma) $28,769,60 $25,229,88
Net income (pr-forma) $ 2,400,03! $ 120,00(
Net income per share (j-forma):

Basic $ 0.11 $ 0.01
Diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.01

3. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 75 million shafesommon stock. The number of common shares isanddutstanding as of December 31,
2005 and 2004 was 21,574,904 and 20,667,515, riesggc

Preferred Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 10 million shafgweferred stock in one or more series, havimggrétative voting powers, designations,
preferences, rights and qualifications, limitatiamsestrictions, and other terms as the Boardioddfors may fix in providing for the issuance
of such series, without any vote or action of tharsholders. During 2000, all outstanding shargeefierred stock were converted into
common stock in connection with our IPO. There ha@en no shares of preferred stock outstanding sioc IPO.

Warrants

In connection with a distribution agreement we eddnto during 1999, we provided a business pastith a warrant to purchase 245,032
shares of our common stock at $4.06 per sharewBnents expire in June 2009. The issuance of #reants resulted in the recognition of
approximately $748,000 of product development egpen 1999. No part of the 1999 warrant has beercesed as of December 31, 2005.

4. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asie and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Numerator:

Net income (loss $ 1,912,92 $(1,048,38I) $(3,412,03)
Denominator

Weightec-average shares outstandi

Basic 21,051,37 20,585,82 20,383,13

Employee stock options and escrowed sh 890,80¢ — —

Diluted 21,942,18 20,585,82 20,383,13
Net income (loss) per shal

Basic $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05) $ (0.19)

Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ (0.05) $ (0.17)
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4. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, s0®] &t calculation of weighted average and eqgeitahares excluded options, warrants,
and restricted stock that were anti-dilutive. Theiealent common shares related to such optionsawes, and restricted stock were 1,447,561
in 2005, 3,048,842 in 2004, and 3,092,978 in 2003.

On February 9, 2006 the Company granted stock iegtio its management group to purchase up to 26G@éres at an exercise price of $2.75
per share. These options vest over four years gpiceeeight years after issuance.

5. INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2005, investments in marketablargezs, which were all classified as available-fate and considered to be short-term
based on management’s intent of holding such seesufor less than 12 months, included the follayvin

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Losses Gains Value
Auction Rate Securitie $ 6,175,00 $ — $ — $ 6,175,00!

At December 31, 2004, investments in marketablaritézs, which were all classified as available-$ale, included the following:

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Losses Gains Value
Auction Rate Securitie $14,025,00 $ — $ — $14,025,00

The scheduled maturities of the above auctiongaterities at December 31, 2005 is shown below:

Maturing after one but before five ye: $ 6,175,001

6. GOODWILL

We account for goodwill under the provisions oft8taent 142, which specifies the approach and tifongvaluating impairment of intangit
assets, and also requires that goodwill be testetnfpairment at least annually using a fair vahethod.

We test goodwill for impairment using a discountagh flow model. The technique used to determiadai value of our reporting units is
sensitive to estimates and assumptions associadtiedash flow from operations and its growth, disebrates, and reporting unit terminal
values. If these estimates or their related assomgpthange in the future, we may be required ¢onceadditional impairment charges, which
could adversely impact our operating results fergkriod in which such a determination is made.pégorm our annual impairment
evaluation of goodwill during the fourth quarterezfch year and as changes in facts and circumstamntieate impairment exists. During our
annual impairment evaluation in the fourth quaofe2005 and 2004, the results of our goodwill innpeant analysis indicated the fair value of
our reporting units exceeded their carrying valUdmrefore no impairment existed at December 30520d 2004.

On March 28, 2005 we acquired DMR. We recorded gdlbdf $7,010,705 in connection with this acquisit, which will generate deductible
amortization for federal income tax purposes. Th&nges in the carrying amount of goodwill for tleags ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
are as follows:

HCO PMD Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $1,982,96. $1,323,72 $ 3,306,68!
Changes in carrying value of goodv 7,010,70! — 7,010,70!
Balance at December 31, 2C $8,993,66! $1,323,72 $10,317,39

HCO PMD Total
Balance at January 1, 20 $1,982,96. $1,323,72 $3,306,68!
Changes in carrying value of goodv — — —
Balance at December 31, 2C $1,982,96. $1,323,72 $3,306,68!

42




Table of Contents

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

All intangible assets have been evaluated in aecare with Statement 142 and are considered tofirdieeuseful lives. The intangibles are
being amortized over their estimated useful livasging from one to eight years. Amortization dfingible assets was approximately
$552,000, $344,000, and $1,140,000, for the yeadsaDecember 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised offthlewing:

As of December 31, 2005 As of December 31, 2004

Accumulated Accumulated

Gross Amount Amortization Net Gross Amount Amortization Net

Customer relate $ 6,340,00! $(3,262,24) $3,077,75 $ 2,940,00! $(2,940,00I) $ —
Content 3,500,00! (3,500,001 — 3,500,00! (3,350,001 150,00
Other 672,14: (485,58) 186,55’ 422 14 (405,92)) 16,22(

Total $10,512,14 $(7,247,82) $3,264,31. $ 6,862,14. $(6,695,92) $166,22(
Estimated amortization expense for the years endegember 31, is as follows:
2006 $ 508,33
2007 508,33:
2008 444,89:
2009 425,00(
2010 and thereafte 1,377,75

Total $ 3,264,31.

8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We have two reportable segments, services provimedalthcare organizations and professionals (H&d)services provided to
pharmaceutical and medical device companies (PM@D)March 28, 2005, we acquired DMR, a company fedws offering healthcare
organizations a wide range of quality and satigfacsurveys, data analyses of survey results, #met oesearch-based measurement tools.
Accordingly, DMR is included in our HCO businesgmsent. The accounting policies of the segmentsteresame as those described in No
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” Weliewe the accounting policies related to DMR aragistent with our accounting policies.

We manage and operate our business segments bates mmarkets they serve and the products andcesrprovided to those markets.
Substantially all sales from both business unitsngu2005 were made to customers in the UnitedeStat

The following is our business segment informatisrofiand for the years ended December 31, 200% @00 2003. We measure segment
performance based on operating loss before incarestand prior to the allocation of corporate ogathexpenses, interest expense, and

depreciation.

Revenues, ne
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati

Segment income (loss) from operatic

*Segment asse
Purchases of property and equipm

43

Year ended December 31, 2005

HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$21,148,41 $6,210,99: $ — $27,359,40
5,453,67. 3,665,96. 625,83 9,745,47!
2,285,11! 388,11° 254,87t 2,928,11.
3,924,60. 1,312,901 214,65 5,452,16:!
930,05! 200,55: 1,547,83: 2,678,441
209,89t 138,47¢ 4,610,13: 4,958,50i
$ 8,345,06! $ 504,97 $(7,253,33)  $ 1,596,70:
$17,440,07 $4,666,89 $13,109,16 $35,216,14
$ 316,01¢ $ 145,93¢ $ 290,26! $ 752,22.
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8. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (continued)

Revenues, ne
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and awaditin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati

Segment income (loss) from operatic

*Segment asse
Purchases of property and equipm

Revenues, n¢
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and ametitin)
Product developmel
Sales and marketir
Depreciation and amortizatic
Other general and administrati

Segment income (loss) from operatic

*Segment asse
Purchases of property and equipm

Year ended December 31, 2004

HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$13,988,81 $6,068,49! $ = $20,057,30.
2,826,44. 3,865,54! 585,18 7,277,17.
2,008,00 378,56¢ 144,60: 2,531,17
3,564,67. 1,024,401 209,60t 4,798,68
338,01 402,53( 1,366,211 2,106,75!
173,24¢ 115,82 4,345,30 4,634,37

$ 5,078,43 $ 281,61 $(6,650,91)  $(1,290,86)
$ 6,496,19 $4,254,68; $17,684,81 $28,435,68
$ 608,20( $ 340,13: $ 67257 $ 1,620,90!

Year ended December 31, 20C

HCO PMD Unallocated Consolidated
$12,016,44 $6,178,63! $ = $18,195,07
2,183,47! 3,569,04. 515,22 6,267,74
1,930,76! 900,02( 416,46t 3,247,241
3,143,44. 1,113,71! 187,83 4,444 .99
1,211,57: 432,01 1,403,87. 3,047,46!
181,35: 225,36¢ 4,579,60:. 4,986,31

$ 3,365,82 $ (61,52)  $(7,103,00)  $(3,798,69)
$ 5,037,009 $4,617,84! $18,743,70 $28,398,64
$ 221,83 $ 178,56 $ 320,08 $ 720,48

* Segment assets include restricted cash, acs@mt unbilled receivables, prepaid and other ntiassets, other assets, property and
equipment, and intangible assets. Investments mieteble securities and cash and cash equivalentsod allocated to individual

segments, and are included within Unalloca

9. INCOME TAXES

Income tax provision (benefit) differs from the amts computed by applying the federal statutorg odit34% to the income (loss) before

income taxes as follows:

Federal tax provision (benefit) at the statutorg

State income tax provision (benefit), net of fetibemefit
Nondeductible amortizatic

Other

(Decrease) increase in valuation allowa

Provision for income taxe

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$ 657,70 $(356,449)  $(1,200,91)
80,27t (39,63’) (114,17}
— — 210,13
(32,26%) (94,670) 69,41
(684,21)) 490,75( 1,035,53;

$  21,50(

$ —

$ —
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9. INCOME TAXES (continued)

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflechétiéax effects of temporary differences betwéenctarrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounésider income tax purposes. Significant componehtieferred tax assets are as follows:

December 31

2005 2004
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 43,73¢ $ 88,98:
Differences related to business combinati 1,105,15: 1,353,30:
Depreciatior 396,09¢ 316,86
Accrued liabilities 296,60 290,19:
Difference related to warran 1,227,38: 1,227,38!
Research and development cre 322,46¢ 257,25
Alternative minimum tax credit 21,50( —
Other 13,41¢ 12,31¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 15,842,17 16,264,28
Total deferred tax asse 19,268,54 19,810,58
Less: Valuation allowanc (19,268,54) (19,810,58)
Net deferred tax ass $ — $ —

As of December 31, 2005, we had federal and s&tteperating loss carryforwards of $42,622,680%8@| 761,558, respectively. These losses
will expire in years 2012 through 2024. As of Debem31, 2005, $1,927,644 of our net operating dasg/forwards is attributable to the
exercise of stock options, and if realized theltarefit will be recorded as an increase to addilipaid-in capital. Our net operating loss
carryforwards are subject to annual limitationsemidternal Revenue Code Section 382. The anmaéhliions could result in the expiration
the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwéefere they are fully utilized. During the yedretvaluation allowance decreased by $542
which was comprised of a $684,215 decrease retatedrrent taxes and an increase of $142,173 tktatthe exercise of stock options.

We have research and development tax credit cawgfols of $322,469 that expire in varying amouhtsigh 2024. We have alternative
minimum tax credit carryforwards of $21,500 tha awailable to offset future regular tax liabilitiand they do not expire.

We have established a valuation allowance for defetax assets at December 31, 2005 and 2004pdbe tincertainty of realizing these as
in the future. Federal income tax payments of $16,$-0-, and $-0- were made during the years eBamgmber 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively. There were no state income taxes patsymade during the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2003.

10. STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (2000 Plan) and 1&®loyee Stock Option Plan (1994 Plan) (the 20@m Rhd the 1994 Plan are collectiv
referred to as “the Plan”) authorize the grantmfans or other forms of stock-based compensatia@miployees, officers, directors, and others
and such grants must be approved by the Compengatimmittee of the Board of Directors. The termbath plans are substantially similar.
Options granted under the Plan have terms of ne riih@n ten years with certain restrictions. TheRléows the Board of Directors to
determine the vesting period of each grant. Thénggeriod of the options granted ranges from irdiste vesting (generally associated with
professional consulting boards and directors’ oig)pto annual vesting over four years, beginning year after the grant date (generally for
employee and officer options). In connection wite 2000 Plan, 5,000,000 shares have been resemwvisgdiance, bringing the total shares
reserved for issuance through the Plan to 9,000s8@€es. During 2002, the 1994 Plan was amendexictade forfeited shares from shares
available for future grants. This amendment redubechumber of shares available for future gragt$,077,482 through December 31, 2005.
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10. STOCK OPTION PLAN (continued)

The weighted average fair value of options gramtad estimated using the Black-Scholes method. Tighted average assumptions used for
these estimates include:

2005 2004 2003
Risk-free interest rat 3.77-4.4"% 2.5(-3.5(% 2.5(%
Expected dividend yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected life (in years 5 5 5

Volatility 75% 75% 60%

The estimated weighted average fair values of aptgranted during 2005, 2004 and 2003 using theeapdcing models were $2.00, $1.60,
and $0.93, respectively.

A progression of activity and various other infotiog relative to stock options is presented inttige below.

2005 2004 2003

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Common Average Common Average Common Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstandinc— beginning of periot 2,813,811 $ 3.27 2,840,88! $ 3.2¢ 2,987,38! $ 3.6¢
Granted 438,00( 3.1C 460,00( 2.5¢ 605,00( 1.4C
Exercisec (344,41) 1.9¢ (121,509 1.2z (88,319 1.7¢
Expired (17,61¢ 1.77 (19,009 5.8¢ (140,687) 5.1Z
Forfeited (95,366 3.7¢€ (346,559 3.02 (522,499 3.17
Outstandinc— end of perioc 2,794,41! $ 3.41 2,813,81! $ 3.27 2,840,88! $ 3.2¢
Exercisable at end of peric 1,886,16 $ 3.8¢ 1,993,43! $ 3.81 1,872,29! $ 3.91

Shares of common stock available for future grantier the Plan totaled 2,441,793 at December 315.20eighted average exercise prices
per share and various other information for optioatstanding at December 31, 2005 are segregdiedanges as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average  Weighted Average Weighted Average
Number of Exercise Price Remaining Number of Exercise Price
Range of Exercise Price Shares Per Share Contractual Life Shares Per Share
$ 054-% 1.1¢ 195,00( $ 1.1C 3.7 192,50( $ 1.1C
$ 1.2(-$ 2.3¢ 983,25( 1.64 3. 725,24¢ 1.75
$ 2.3¢-$ 3.57 777,00( 2.94 6.7 129,25( 2.7¢€
$ 3.5&-% 4.7¢ 323,75( 4.0¢€ 1.7 323,75( 4.0€
$ 4.77-$ 5.9t 69,00( 5.4z 2.5 69,00( 5.4z
$ 5.9€-% 7.1¢ 224,77 6.4¢ 2.C 224,77 6.4¢€
$ 8.3:-% 9.5C 77,59¢ 8.9t 3.8 77,59¢ 8.9t
$ 9.51-$10.7C 75,85( 10.0C 2.2 75,85( 10.0C
$10.71-$ 11.8¢ 68,19¢ 11.8¢ 2.2 68,19¢ 11.8¢
279441 $ 3.41 3.2 1,886,16. $ 3.87

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan

We have a defined-contribution employee benefih (#01(k) Plan) incorporating provisions of Sectifyi(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Our employees must have attained the age of 2hawel completed thirty days of service to be eligyiiol participate in the 401(k) Plan. Under
the provisions of the 401(k) Plan, a plan membey make contributions, on a tax-deferred basistmeixceed 15% of compensation, subject
to IRS limitations. The Company provided eligiblaoyees with a discretionary contribution totalaqgproximately $73,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2004. The Company did not peavidiscretionary contribution for the year endeg&nber 31, 2005. The Company has
not provided matching contributions through Decengig 2005.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Purchase Pleoipiorates the provisions of Section 423 of therhl Revenue Code. Under the
Purchase Plan, 1,000,000 shares of common stoekbiean reserved for purchase by employees. Thaé&sedlan provides for annual offer
periods of twelve months to eligible employees. éhtthe Purchase Plan, eligible employees can psectieiough payroll deductions, the les

of up to 15% of their eligible base compensatio®,600 shares of common stock, at a price equiv&eBs% of the lesser of the beginning or
end of year price. During 2005, 83,742 shares ywarehased under the plan at $1.90 per share, amyd004, 90,266 shares were purchased
under the plan at $0.85 per share.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Lease Commitments

We lease office facilities in Nashville, TN, Fraimkl TN, Denver, CO, and Dallas, TX, under agreemémit expire before or during April 20
The Dallas, TX facility is subleased to a thirdtgahrough the expiration of the original leasejethends January 2007. Some lease
agreements contain provisions for escalating regtents over the initial terms of the lease. Weantfor these leases by recognizing rent
expense on the straight-line basis and adjustiegiéferred rent expense liability for the differetetween the straight-line rent expense and
the amount of rent paid. The Company also leasgsic®ffice equipment under both operating andtehfeases. Total rent expense under all
operating leases was approximately $895,000, $0234nhd $650,000, for the years ended Decembet0®E, 2004, and 2003, respectively.
We also lease certain computer equipment from thérdies which are accounted for as capital leases.

Future rental payment commitments at December @15 2inder capital and non-cancelable operatingteasith initial terms of one year or
more, are as follows:

Capital Leases Operating Leases

2006 $ 190,90¢ $ 839,48:
2007 159,75t 594,37:
2008 69,56 442,92
2009 376,14!
2010 — 116,40°
Total minimum lease paymer 420,22t $ 2,369,33:
Less amounts representing intel (38,349

Present value of minimum lease payments (inclugit®p,022 classified as curre| $ 381,87¢

Sublease rental income related to the Dallas, TXifiawas approximately $78,000 in 2005 and $78,502004. Future operating lease
commitments listed in the above table have beencextiby sublease income of approximately $71,7@D06 and by $6,000 in 2007.

The carrying value of assets under capital leagkich are included with owned assets in the accoyipg consolidated balance sheets was
$375,516 and $54,962 at December 31, 2005 and 28§dectively. Amortization of the assets underciygtal leases is included in
depreciation expense on the accompanying consetidaitements of operations.

Litigation

We are subject to various legal proceedings arithsl¢hat arise in the ordinary course of our bussnén the opinion of management, the
ultimate liability with respect to those proceedirand claims will not materially affect our finaakposition, operations or liquidity.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

HealthStream'’s chief executive officer and printijy@ancial officer have reviewed and evaluated ¢ffectiveness of the Compamsydisclosur
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Secuitiehange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of December 31, 2005. Based on that etadn, the chief executive officer and principaldcial officer have concluded that
HealthStream'’s disclosure controls and procedurse wifective to ensure that the information reegito be disclosed by the Company in the
reports the Company files or submits under the BRgk Act is recorded, processed, summarized amdteelwithin the time periods specified
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rutelsfarms, and the information required to be disetbin the reports the Company files or
submits under the Exchange Act was accumulate¢aminunicated to the Company’s management, incluigéngrincipal executive and
principal financial officer, or persons performisignilar functions, as appropriate to allow timebctsions regarding required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in HealthStream’s interrmarabover financial reporting that occurred durthg fourth quarter of 2005 that have
materially affected, or that are reasonably likelynaterially affect, HealthStream’s internal cohwver financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information as to directors of the Company is ipowated by reference from the information contaiimedur proxy statement for the 2006
Annual Meeting of Shareholders that we will filetiwthe Securities and Exchange Commission withihd&ys of the end of the fiscal year to
which this report relates. Pursuant to Generallietibn G(3), certain information concerning exé@oeiofficers of the Company is included in
Part | of this Form 10-K, under the caption “ExeéeatOfficers of the Registrant.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Incorporated by reference from the information e@me¢d in our proxy statement for the 2006 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahMbBnagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2006 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witf#f days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2006 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Incorporated by reference from the information e@med in our proxy statement for the 2006 AnnuakMey of Shareholders that we will file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ifi days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a2)(1) Financial Statements
Reference is made to the financial statementsdeclun Item 8 to this Report on Form 10-K.
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notagtydé or the required information is shown in @ensolidated Financial Statements or
the notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits
Number Description

*2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated July 23, 1999, gibverPlatter Education, Inc., SilverPlatter Imf@tion, Inc. ant
HealthStream, Inc

*2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 5,,28080ng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitjdnc., Quick Study
Inc. and each shareholder of Quick Study,

*2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 468%g KnowledgeReview, LLC, Louis Bucelli and MakdRepik, and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 25) 26@bng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitipinc., Multimedia
Marketing, Inc., and the stockholders of MultimeMarketing, Inc.

*2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated January 27, 2680e&n Emergency Medicine Internetwork, Inc. andlth&tream, Inc

2.6 (1) Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,280and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompswh Data Manageme
& Research, Inc

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8akam, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stockpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Article 7 of the Fourth Amended and Restated Cihi— included in Exhibit 3..

4.3 Article Il of the Amended and Restated Byla— included in Exhibit 3.:

*4.4 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, Hated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst
*4.6 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Healtm$ttea. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.1° 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofil&®b, 1994

*10.2" 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri| 2000

*10.3" Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.4" Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 21,9, 9%tween HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Fiis

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6 abh@9Geptember 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@) bk landlord, and
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&iteam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2001 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infdionalechnology &
Services, Inc

*110.8 Form of Employee Stock Purchase F
710.9 Form of Director Stock Option Agreeme

710.10  Form of Employee and Executive Officer Stock Optigreemen



~10.11 Form of Cash Bonus Pl:

211

23.1

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

Subsidiaries of HealthStream, Ir

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursti@io Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursiido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

@

Confidential treatment was received, with respeasdrtain portions of this document. Such portimese omitted and filed separatt
with the Securities and Exchange Commiss

Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1 (Reg. No. 33-88939).
Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt
Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Formr-K, dated March 29, 200!
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized on this 30th day of March 2006.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

By: /s/ROBERTA. FRIST, .R.

Robert A. Frist, Jr
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bydtowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsdted:

Signature

Title(s)

Date

/s/ ROBERT A. FRIST, (R.

Robert A. Frist, Jr

/s/ ARTHUR E. NEWMAN

Arthur E. Newmar

/s/ SusaN A. BROWNIE

Susan A. Brownit

/s/ JEFFREY L. MCLAREN

Jeffrey L. McLarer

/s/ JaMES DANIELL

James Danie

/s/WILLIAM STEAD

William Stead

/s/ THOMPSONDENT

Thompson Den

/s/ LINDA REBROVICK

Linda Rebrovick

/s/ FRANK GORDON

Frank Gordor

/s/ RoN HINDS

Ron Hinds

/s/ MICHAEL SHMERLING

Michael Shmerling

President, Chief Executive Officer a
Chairman (Principal Executive Office

Senior Vice-President and Chief Financ
Officer, Compliance Officer (Principal Financial fiaer)

Senior Vice-President of Finance and Human Resoutr

Corporate Secretary (Principal Accounting Offic

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

50

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200

March 30, 200
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

E)L(Jrrlr:?)l(t—:-r Description

*2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated July 23, 1999, gi@itwverPlatter Education, Inc., SilverPlatter Infation, Inc. ant
HealthStream, Inc

*2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 5,,2800ng HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisitjidnc., Quick Study, Inc.
and each shareholder of Quick Study,

*2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 16, 48889 KnowledgeReview, LLC, Louis Bucelli and MakdRepik, and
HealthStream, Inc

*2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated January 23) 2éfong HealthStream, Inc., HealthStream Acquisiipinc., Multimedia
Marketing, Inc., and the stockholders of MultimeMarketing, Inc.

*2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated January 27, 2680@eén Emergency Medicine Internetwork, Inc. andlth&tream, Inc

2.6 (1) Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 2&,280and among HealthStream, Inc., Mel B. Thompmwh Data Management
& Research, Inc

*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restated Charter oftH8akam, Inc

*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthStréam

*4.1 Form of certificate representing the common stackpar value per share, of HealthStream,

4.2 Article 7 of the Fourth Amended and Restated Chi— included in Exhibit 3..

4.3 Article Il of the Amended and Restated Byla— included in Exhibit 3.:

*4.4 Warrant to purchase common stock of HealthStream, tdated June 14, 1999, held by GE Medical Syst

*4.6 Common Stock Purchase Agreement between Healtm$ttea. and Healtheon/WebMD Corporati

*10.1" 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, effective as ofilAb, 1994

*10.2" 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of Apri| 2000

*10.3* Form of Indemnification Agreeme

*10.4" Executive Employment Agreement, dated April 21,9,9%tween HealthStream, Inc. and Robert A. Rits

*10.5 Lease dated March 27, 1995, as amended June 6 ah@9September 22, 1998, between Cummins Stati@) bk landlord, and
NewOrder Media, Inc., as tene

*+10.6 Development and Distribution Agreement between th&iteam, Inc. and GE Medical Syste

*+10.7 Education Services Provider Agreement dated Octbp2001 between HealthStream, Inc. and HCA Infdional echnology &
Systems, Inc

*\10.8 Form of Employee Stock Purchase F

710.9  Form of Director Stock Option Agreeme

710.10 Form of Employee and Executive Officer Stock Optikgreemen

~10.11  Form of Cash Bonus Pl¢

211 Subsidiaries of HealthStream, Ir

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuido Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002



32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

+  Confidential treatment was received with respeceidain portions of this document. Such portioeseromitted and filed separately w
the Securities and Exchange Commiss

* Incorporated by reference to Regist’s Registration Statement on For-1 (Reg. No. 33-88939).
A Management contract or compensatory plan or arraagt
(1) Incorporated by reference from exhibit filed on @urrent Report on Forr-K, dated March 29, 200!



EXHIBIT 10.9

FORM OF DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

OPTION GRANTED THIS DAY OF , 200__ ("GRANT DATE") BY HEALTHSTREAM,
INC. (THE "COMPANY") TO Optionee (THE "DIRECTOR").

1. Stock Option. The Company hereby grants to tihecir an option (the "Option") to purchase up to shares of the common stock of
the Company, no par value, to be issued upon tecime of the Option, in the manner hereafterahffully paid and nonassessable. This
Option is being granted under the provisions ofG@leenpany's 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plambjich are incorporated herein by
reference. The Plan is administered by the Compiens@ommittee of the Board of Directors of the Guamy.

2. Time of Exercise. This Option shall be exercisand have a term as follows:
(a) This Option shall expire on the tenth anniversd the Grant Date.
(b) One hundred percent (100%) of the shares gtamder this Option shall vest and become exerldsabthe Grant Date.

(c) This Option shall be exercisable only in theskr of round lots of One Hundred (100) sharebetdtal number of shares remaining under
this Grant.

3. Purchase Price. The purchase price per shaltésha , being not less than the fair markétevaf the common stock as of the Grant
Date.

4. Rights as a Shareholder. The Director shall maveaghts as a shareholder with respect to ansesteovered by this Option until the Direc
has given written notice of exercise, has paidulhfér such shares and taken such other actiomsagsbe required by the Committee in
accordance with the provisions of the Plan. No stdjent shall be made for dividends for which treord date is prior to the date of issuance
of such stock certificate.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

The undersigned:

(a) Acknowledges receipt of the foregoing Optiod #me attachments referenced therein and undessthatlall rights and liabilities with
respect to this Option and the Plan; and

(b) Acknowledges that as of the date of grant f @ption, it sets forth the entire understandiagneen the undersigned Director and the
Company and its Affiliates regarding the acquisitaf stock in the Company pursuant to this graut supersedes all prior oral and written
agreements on that subject.

OPTIONEE



EXHIBIT 10.10

FORM OF EMPLOYEE AND EXECUTIVE OFFICER STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
2000 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

OPTION GRANTED THIS DAY OF , 200__ ("GRANT DATE") BY HEALTHSTREAM,
INC. (THE "COMPANY") TO Optionee (THE "EMPLOYEE").

1. Stock Option. The Company hereby grants to thelByee an option (the "Option") to purchase up to _ shares of the common stock of
the Company, no par value, to be issued upon tecime of the Option, in the manner hereafterahffully paid and nonassessable. This
Option is being granted under the provisions ofG@leenpany's 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plambjich are incorporated herein by
reference. The Plan is administered by the Compiens@ommittee of the Board of Directors of the Guamy.

2. Time of Exercise. This Option shall be exercisand have a term as follows:

(a) This Option shall expire on the eighth anniaeyf the Grant Date.

(b) One fourth (1/4) of the shares granted under@ption shall vest and become exercisable offitsteanniversary of the Grant Date.

(c) One half (1/2) of the shares granted under@mson shall vest and become exercisable on tbengkanniversary of the Grant Date.
(d) Three fourths (3/4) of the shares granted uttderOption shall vest and become exercisabléherthird anniversary of the Grant Date.

(e) The remaining one fourth (1/4) of the sharestgd under this Option shall vest and become eadile on the fourth anniversary of the
Grant Date.

(f) This Option shall be exercisable only in theder of round lots of One Hundred (100) shareketdtal number of shares remaining under
this Grant.

3. Purchase Price. The purchase price per shaltesha , being not less than the fair maviedtie of the common stock as of the Grant
Date.

4. Rights as a Shareholder. The Employee shall haveghts as a shareholder with respect to ansesh@overed by this Option until the
Employee has given written notice of exercise,gwd in full for such shares and taken such oth#omas as may be required by the Commi
in accordance with the provisions of the Plan. Njustment shall be made for dividends for whichréaeord date is prior to the date of
issuance of such stock certificate.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

The undersigned:

(a) Acknowledges receipt of the foregoing Optiod #me attachments referenced therein and undessthatlall rights and liabilities with
respect to this Option and the Plan; and

(b) Acknowledges that as of the date of grant f @ption, it sets forth the entire understandiagneen the undersigned Employee and the
Company and its Affiliates regarding the acquisitaf stock in the Company pursuant to this graut supersedes all prior oral and written
agreements on that subject.

OPTIONEE



EXHIBIT 10.11

FORM OF CASH BONUS PLAN
HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

Methodology

The primary financial measurement underlying owhdaonus plan will be EBITDA. This measure is imtet to allow for comparability
between periods and generally will exclude the iohjpd non-cash items or accounting changes. Ifemgnues are less than 95% of budgeted
revenues, management will reduce the bonus cailootaby 5-10 % depending on the extent and circantsts of the unfavorable variance.
Only non-commissioned employees are eligible fatigipation in the cash bonus plan.

Method of Bonus Calculation

The calculation is based on the employee's lewetlrale within the company. Bonus amounts shalldjested to reflect movement from
commissioned to non-commissioned roles, as wdéase of absences, employment for less than theegmar or other changes in roles and
responsibilities.

Participant Level descriptions and participation

Once results have exceeded budgeted EBITDA redfudtsjses will begin to be earned. Calculationsdnyigipant shall be subject to the
following levels and participation:

Level 1- Includes all positions within the compahgt generally don't have managerial responsibdliis a component of their job description

(up to 10% of base compensation)
Level 2- Includes positions that have supervisog/ar project responsibilities and have the tifldanager (up to 15% of base compensation)
Level 3- Includes Business Directors and Vice Piesis (up to 20% of base compensation)
Level 4- Includes the CEO and Senior Vice Presglémp to 25% of base compensation)

Bonus Amount - Any payout over the budgeted EBIT@RAet will be self-funding (that is to say, bomas/out would represent only a portion
of the incremental EBITDA achievement over budget).

Timing - The Plan will run from January 1 througed@mber 31. A summary of the plan shall be provideall employees explaining the plan.
Administration - The plan shall be administeredisy Compensation Committee of the Board of Director

Payout - On or about March 15 of the following yeamtingent upon employment on the payment datndgement has been granted
discretion with regard to timing of payment for tap75% of any bonus earned during the first hathefyear for Level 1 and 2 employees.



EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

State or Cther Jurisdiction
of Incorporation or
Names Under Vhich We Do Business Or gani zati on
Educati on Design, Inc. Tennessee
Dat a Managenent & Research, |nc. Tennessee



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-3744@&pgpeng to the (1) HealthStream, Inc.
1994 Employee Stock Option Plan; (2) HealthStrelam, 2000 Stock Incentive Plan; and (3) HealthStrelmc. Employee Stock Purchase

Plan, of our report dated February 17, 2006, wapect to the consolidated financial statemenkeafthStream, Inc. included in this Annual
Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended Decembe2805.

/'sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashvill e, Tennessee
March 28, 2006



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Robert A. Frist, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlealthStream, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or angitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) forelgestrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiidslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c¢) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis's internal control over financial reportirigat occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal qaain the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committieregistrant's board of directors (or personfopming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are reasone
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiaimation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2006 /'s/ ROBERT A. FRIST, JR

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chi ef Executive Oficer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Arthur E. Newman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKlealthStream, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or angitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) forelgestrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraiidslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c¢) disclosed in this report any change in the tegis's internal control over financial reportirigat occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal qaain the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal cohtreer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer antalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committieregistrant's board of directors (or personfopming the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are reasone
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abilityrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiaimation; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2006 /'s/ ARTHUR E. NEWVAN

Arthur E. Newman
Chi ef Financial Oficer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStnednc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the yeadimg December 31, 2005, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ort#tte hereof (the "Report”), Robert A. Frist, Jhje Executive Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, as adbptirsuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxlew®2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ ROBERT A. FRIST, JR
Robert A. Frist, Jr.

Chi ef Executive Oficer
March 30, 2006



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthStnednc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the yeadimg December 31, 2005, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ortéte hereof (the "Report”), Arthur E. Newman, Cligfancial Officer of the Company
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,dmpted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fajphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ ARTHUR E. NEWWVAN
Arthur E. Newman

Chief Financial Officer
March 30, 2006



